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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of West Ploneer Properties (India) Private Limited
¢
Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of West Ploneer Properties (Indla) Private
Limited ("the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory Information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated In Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financlal position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In india, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companles (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, This
responsibilify also includes malntenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financlal control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financlal statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be inciuded In the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, as specified under Sectlon 143¢10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtaln reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement,

An audlt involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that glve a true and fair view In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also Includes evaiuating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Campany’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We belleve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a baslis for our audit opinion on
the financlal statements,
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Basis for qualified opinion

We report that revenue from Sales - Property Development is recognized on construction work
executed on cornmercial ptaza based on execution of application forms by the buyers, over and
above duly signed agreementu‘ Such executed application forms are taken into consideration for
the purpose of arriving at the threshold limit for initiation of revenue recognition. This is not in
accordance with Guidance note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (Revised 2012y,
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of indla and Accounting Standard 9 “Revenue
recognition”, since alf significant risks and rewards of ownership cannot be considered to be
transferred to buyer on execution of application forms, Consequent to the poticy adopted by the
company, revenue from sales property development disclosed in Note 20 is higher by Rs.
40,799,413; cost of construction as disclosed In Note 22 is higher by Rs. 32,485,953; loss for the
year Is lower by Rs 8,313,460 and Net deficit In statement of profit and loss under reserves and
surplus as disclosed in Note 4 is lower by Rs 8,313,460,

Qualified opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the maiter(s) described in the Basls for Quafified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesald financial statements give the Information required by the Act In the manner
so required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted In Indla, of the state of affalrs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, of its loss and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Audltor's report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of sectlon 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are In agreement with the books of account;

{d) 10 our opinion, the aforesaid financlal statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specifled under sectlon 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
& 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016:

(e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified as on March
31, 2017, from being appelnted as a director In terms of sectlon 164 (2) of the Companles
Act, 2013;

() With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure 2'" to this report;

(9> With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report In accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and to the best of
our Information and according to the explanations given to us:
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The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on Its financlal position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 35 and 36 to the financial statements;

The Company did not‘have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protectlon Fund by the Company.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note 40 to these financial statements
as to the holding of Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016
as well as dealings In Specified Bank Notes during the period from November 8, 2016 to
December 30, 2016, Based on our audit procedures and relying on the management
representation regarding the holding and nature of cash transactions, Including Specified
Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures are in accordance with the books of
accounts maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Partner

Membership Number; 37924

Place of Signature: Mumbai
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Jayesh Gandhi

Pate 2 g nAY 2017
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Apnexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
} Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date

} Re: West Ploneer Properties (Indla) Private Limited (‘the Company”

| () (a) The Company has malntained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative detalls and situation of fixed assets.

j (h) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identifled on such verification,

{c) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and falr
view of the financial statements and according to Information and explanations given
by the management, the title deeds of immovable properties included In fixed assets
are heid In the name of the company.

an The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonabie
intervals during the year and no material discrepancles were noticed on such physical
verification,

Clny According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Llability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register matntained under section 189 of
the Companles Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(Iil)(a), (b) and (¢} of
the Qrder are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(V) Iy our oplnion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is
interested to which provislons of section 185 of the Companles Act, 2013 apply and
hence not commented upon, Further provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act
2013 in respect of loans and advances glven and investments made have been
complled with by the company.

D) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

wh We have broadly reviewed the books of account malntained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the construction of
resldential and commerclal properties and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have been made and malntained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the same

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues Including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, vatue added fax, and other materlal statutory dues have generally been regutarly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a
few cases. )

{b) According to the infermation and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, , service tax, sales-tax, value added
tax and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable,
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(¢) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax

CviE)

(%)

(0

b

(xiy

{xdiiy

which have not been geposited on account of any dispute, However, according to the
records of the Company, dues outstanding of service tax on account of any dispute
are as follows:

Nature of the | Nature of | Amount Pertod to which : Forum where
Statute Dues {RsJ the amount | the dispute is
relates pending
Finance Act, { Service Tax 1,58,50,807 | FY 2007-08 to ] Supreme
1994 FY 2011-12 ¢upto | Court
September 201 1)
Maharashtra Tax/Interest/ 27,112,956 | FY 2007-08 and | Sales Tax
Value Added | Penaity FY 2008-09 {Appeabh -
Tax Act, 2002 Mumbai

Based on our audlt procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to Information and explanations
given by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to a financlal institution and bank. The Company did not have
any outstanding dues in respect of debenture holders or government during the year.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
falr view of the flnancial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, we report that monies raised by way of term loans were applied for the
purposes for which those were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the flnancial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or on
the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

Based on our audlt procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the {rue and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the iInformation and
explanations glven by the management, the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

in our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company, Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xiD of the order are not applicahbie to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
appiicable accounting standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the
company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section
177 of the Act Is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(xiv) According fo the Informatlon and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the halance sheet, the company has not made any preferentiat
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3{xiv)
are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

(xv)  Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
falr view of the financial statements and according to the Information and
explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvly  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
F‘Imgequtrataon number: 324982E15300003

Jayesh Gandh!
Partner
Membership No.:37924

Place: Mumbai

Date: 26 pAY A0
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WEST PIONEER PROPERTIES (INDIA) PRIVATE
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Flnanciait Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companles Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financiat controls over financlal reporting of West Pioneer Properties
(India) Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2017, In conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internat financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financfal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, These responsibliities include the deslgn, implementation and maintenance
of adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's poficies, the safequarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of retiable financial Information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responslbility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinjon on the Company's internal financial controls over
financiat reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143¢10) of the Companles Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applcable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guldance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financlal reporting was established and maintained and If such controls operated
effectively In all materlal respects.

An audlt involves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financlal controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financtal controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controis over financlal reporting, assessing the risk that a materlal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
= fraud or errar,

We befleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our quatified audit opinlon on the internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internatl Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A company's internai financial control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable defail,
accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

k receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
?“ g \:a management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

!
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financlal statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internat Flnancial Contiols Over Financlal Reporting

Because of the Inherent fimltatgions of Internat flnancial cantrols over financiat reporting, including
the possibllity of cotlusion or Improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controis over financlal reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
Internal financiaf control over financlal reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weakness has been identified as at March 31,2017

The Company did not have an appropriate internal controf system for recognition of revenue
as per Guidance note on Accounting for Reaf Estate Transactions (Revised 2012), Issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and Accounting Standard 9 "Revenue
recognition” since Sales - Property Development on construction work executed on
coemmercial plaza is recognised as revenye considering executed application forms by the
buyers, Instead of duly slgned agreements.

A ‘material weakness'Is a deflciency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal financlal control
over financlal reporting, such that there is a reasonable possiblity that a material misstatement
of the company's annual or interim flnancial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basls,

Inour opinion, except for the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement
of the objective of the controf criteria, the Company has, in ali material respects, maintained
adequate internal financlal controls over financial reporting and such interna financlal controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2017, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criterla established by Company considering components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial
Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indfa.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audlted, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing Issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specifled under Section 143(10) of the Act, the standalone
financial statements of West Pioneer Properties (India) Private Limited, which comprise the

Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, This materlal weakness was considered in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied In our audit of the March 31, 2017 standalone financial
statements of the Company and this report has affected our report dated May 29, 2017, in which
we have expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA} F:jm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

P, D
per Tayesh Gandhi
Partner
Membership Number; 37924
Place of Signature: Mumbai

ot 99 MAY 2017
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West Pioncer Propertics (Indig) Private Limited
Balanee Sheet as at 31st March, 2047

Equity and Liabitities
Sharehotders’ Funds
Share Capitat

Reserves and Surplys

Non-current Liabilities i
Long-term Dorrowings

Other long-term Liabilitios

Long-term Provisions

Current liabilities
Short-tern Borrowings
Trade Payables

Other Curvent Liabilities
Shott-term Provisions

TOTAL

Assety
Non-turrent assets
Fixed assets
Property, Plant and Equipniemt
Intangible Assets
Capital waork-in-progress
Non-Current lnvestments
Deferced tox assets {net)
Loans wrd Advances
Qther son-curren assots

Current asseis

hvendories

Trade Receivablas

Currend Investments

Cash snd Cash Bquivalents
Loans and Advances

Other current nssets

TOTAL
Suragary of signilicunt deeounting policies

Asat Asal
Notes Jst Mareh, 2017 Jst Mareh, 2014
? k¢
3 26,81.39,210 26,81.39,210
4 1.02,54.71,072 1,04,62,12,767
1,29,35,10,282 1,31,43,51,9717
5 1,43,35,33,537 92,89,28,381
7 7.50,27,030 7.43,22,309
8 17.05,809 15,59.814
1,51,11,67,376 1,00,48,10,501
9 - £,79.00,000
0 5,22,65,579 4.15,54,550
10 235,28.87,242 47,74,97,330
3 79,914 83,494
30.52,32,718 53,70,35,383
3.11,00,10,3%6 2,85,61,97.864
it 1,02,27.5.0,483 1.02,47,53,893
i2 23,571,088 462,409
k3| 14,63,31,035 13,84,62 43
i3 26,01,76,879 260.76,879
G . .
14 5,85,99,830 171,714,518
16 97,03,833 ¥9,00,313
1.50,02,22 048 1,51,08,30,492
17 1,46,87,98,881 1,15,71,65,581
I3 9,73,56,802 10,28,48,937
18 45,00,022 22
19 1,09,7¢.345 3,08.79.614
14 2,28 87,049 3.09,41,045
16 32,74,236 2,35,32, 173
o 1,60,97,88,338 1,34,53,67,372
3,1!.00,50,386' 2,85,61,07,864
2.1

The neeompanying nofes are an {ntegral part of the financial statements

As per our report of gven date

FarSRBC & COLLY
Chanered Accountants

iCA 1/3111 Registeation No.: 3245820/E300003

e
[FEETayesh Gindni
Puctner

Mesbership No.: 37924

Fur and on behall of the Board of Drirectors of
West Plotcer Propertios {Indix) Private Limited

/é‘/‘-f'\—»«u\/ﬁ%

Dr.$hatadey Sengapta

Diirector
DIN No. 00201695

Suedeep Kumar
CFG

Place: Mumbut

{aate : 25th May 2617

Sanjay Soni
irector
DN Mo, 01048614

vy ﬁ’f -

Minal Kardite
Compazy Secretury




West Ploncer Propertics (India) Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3ist March, 2017

For the year ended For the year ended

Notes 31st Mareh, 2017 31st March, 2016
¥ 4
Income
Revenue from operations i 20 36,61,37,396 64,12,73,782
Other income 21 1,40,18,091 1,69,93,306
Total revenue (1) 38,01,55,487 65,82,67,088
Expenses
Cost of construction of propertics 22 9,21,68,758 30,87,23,419
Lmployce benefits expense 23 4,01,28,651 3,63,40,448
Other expenses 24 14,91,68,662 21,52,52,689
Total (1T} 28,14,66,071 56,03,16,556
Enrnings before Finance cost, tax, depreciation and 9,86,89,416 9,79,50,532
» . amertization (EBITDA) (1) - {I1) ’
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 6,08,12,487 5,75,92,411
Finanee costs 26 5,86,18,624 7,12,58,871
{Loss) for the year (2,07,41,695) (3,09,00,750)
Earnings per equity share[nominal value of share 27
TH0 (315t March 2016: T10))
Basic {9.88) {13.00)
Diluted {2.88) (13.00)"
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements
AS per our report of even date

For SRBC&COLLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Waest Pioncer Properties {fndin) Private Limited
ICAFRirm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003
J 1 e e /f——s—u..q_,...uta;._
perIEYEsh Candh De.Shatadrn Sengupta Sanjay Soni
Pastner Director Director
Membership No.: 37924 DIN No. 00281695 DIN No. 01048644
. A8
" . \‘)\v 1 ﬁd‘-’g‘ -
Sundeep Kumar Minal Kardile
CFO Company Secretary

&

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2017

Place: Mumbai
Date : 2%th May 2017
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Wost Plonger Properties (Endin) Prlvate Limited
Cash flow statensent for the yoar ended 3]st March, 2017

For the year enclecd For the year ended
J1st March, 2647 31st Mareh, 2015
2 L
fraqim ope vl
(L.oss) before tax (2,67,41,695) (3,09,00,750)
Adistments to reoongile Joss before tax to we cash flows
Depreeintion/ amertization 6,08,12,487 5,75,92411
Profit on sale af fixed assols - (11,589)
Provislon for doubtfisl debibad debt write off 598,963 57,9G,529
Write back of balanges (4,82,820) {4,46,2£6)
Interest expense 5,86,18,624 7,12,58,871
interest (income} (27,05317) (1,29,88.691)
[nterest received o0 locome Tax refind ; (59,91,793) {14,731
Dividend (income} [1.9741%) {7,94,582)
Operating profit before werking caydial changes 8,93,11,029 8,94,25,246
LERTIR Ing capital ;
ticrense/(Decrease) in trade payables £,11,93,832 (33,85,026)
Inerensei{Deceease) in provisions 143,417 (317,079
Inerense/(Decrense) in other current Uabilities 3,63,97,899 {9,05,21,205)
Increase i otlier long-tenn linbilitics 1604721 68,46,167
(IncreaseyDectease i frade receivables (1,50,29,962) 67,50,325
{Incrense)¥Decreass in inveniories (26,49,42.227) 16,87,20,755
Decrense/(Increase) in long-term loans nnd advances 17,860,585 (8,00,663)
Deerease in short-terns loans and advances 80,53,995 5,36,89,149
Dreereaso in other curient assets 147,44 668 31.83,670
Cash (uscd in) / generated from operations (11,67.42,042) 23,3591,338
Divect taxes paid (net of refiimls) 3,73,17,237 1,62,003
Net eash Qow {wsed In) generated from aperating sctivitles (A) {7,94,24,805) 23,37,53.342
“nsh 1 from fnvesting activi
Proceeds from sale of fixed assels . 83,743
Purchase of tixed assets, inchiding CWIP and capital advances {5,49,12,180) (6,14,05,538)
Purcltase of current and non curren investments {27,35,35,500) (37,23,76,879)
Dividend received 797419 7,94,582
Proceeds from salefoiturity of owrrent ilvestments 26,90,35,000 31,64,47,137
Baak deposit (having original mararity of mors than three months) - 56,565,891
{nterest received 51,441,008 1,18,78,561
Frterest recsived on luconte Tax refund 59.91,793 74,737
Net cush flow (used in) favesting activitics (B} (4,74,84,060) (29,88,37,766)
b fRows from Guancing pettulyje
Progeeds from long-tern: boreowings 1,18,35,59,246 33,50,02,954
Repayment of fong-ferny botrowings (93,99,16.519) (8,45,15,560)
Proceeds from short-term borvowings 95,79,60,000 7,35,00,000
Repayment of short-ten borrowwings {97,58,60,000) (10,94,00,000)
Interest paid (11,87.45.131) (13,10,37,494)
Met cash fow from financing activities (C} 10,69,97,596 8,359,507
Net {leerease)finerease in cash and cash cquivaients (A + B + ) {1,9%,08,269) 1,84,45,473
Cash and cash equivalents a1 the beginning of the year 2,83,79.614 99,34, 141
Cash and cash equivalents at tie end of the yenr 84,71,345 2,83,79,614
Components of cash and cash cquivatents
Cash on hand 6,00.711 3,536,143
With banks- on current account : 78,710,634 31843478
With banks - in Bank deposit ecstricted {Refor MNote 19) 4000000 1,74,05,435
Tolal cash and bank balance 124,71,345 4,57,85,049
Less: Fixed deposils nof considered as cagh cquivatents 40,00000 1,74,05.438
Cnsk and cash equivalents in cash fow statement B TLI48 2,83,79.414

Sumunary of signiticant aceenmting policies (Refer Wate 2.1)

As per our report of even date
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West Pioneer Properties {Indiz) Private Limited
Notes 1o Financiol Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Corpovate Information

West Pioneer Propenties (Indin) Private Limited is engaged in constriction and management of shopping malls, development and sale of
residential property and fntends to develop mxed vse properly in India. The Company is also engaged in the busingss of opraling Family
Entertainment Centers (Gare Zone) under brand name as "Zingeria", Whils Westfiled Entertainment Private Limited is g wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, its own equity capital is held and wholly owned by Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited (Holding Conpany).

Basis of Prepasation

The fnanciaf statements of the Company nee prepared in socordance with gencraily accepted accounting prineiptes in lndia (Indian GAAP),
The Company has prepared these finandial statements to comply in ali material respects with the Accounting Standards notified under Section
133 of the Companics Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and Companiss (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2616, ‘The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual bigis and under the historical cost convention,

The aceonnting policies adopled i preparation of the financial siements are consistent with those of the previous year, except for changes
disclosed separately, if any. ’

Summary of significant acepunting policics

Use of Estimntes

Preparation of financial slatements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make Judgments, sstimates and asswmptions that
affect reported amounts of revende, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosuie of contingent liabilitics at end of the feporling period.
Adthough these estimates are based upon managenient’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these asstmptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes reqiiring adjustment o the eateying amounts of assets or linbilities in fisture periods.

Presentation of und Diselosure In Firancind Statements

Asscis and labifities nre classified #s Current and Non Currend ag per the Company's
Schedule 1] of the Companies Act 2013, Based on nalure of activity carried out by the Company and the period between the procurement and
reakisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company nascerlains its operating cyele as 12 months for the purpose of Current Non-Currert
classification of nssets and fubilitjes,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, pluat and equipment, capital work-in-progress are stated ot cost fess secumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if vy, Cost
comprises purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset 1o its working condition for ity intended use. Ay trade discounts ang
rcbates are deducted in arriving ol he purchase price, When significont paris of plant snd equipment are require to be replaced at intervats, the
Company deprecinies them sepeately based on their specitic usefid lives.

All other repair and maimtonance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Ttems of stores md spares (hat meet the definition of
property, slant and squipment arg capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful tves, Otherwise, such items arc classified as Inventorics,
Gaing or losses urising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal procesds
andd dhe carrying amount of the nsset are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the gsset is derecognized,

‘The Company identities and determines cost of each component’ part of the asset scparately, if the component/ part has a cost which is
signiticant 16 the totaf cost of the assef and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset,

Property, plant and equipment held for sale is vatued at fower of their carrying anounis and net reakizable vatugs, Any write-lown is reeognized
inthe Stalemont of Profit ang Loss, ‘

.

Beprecintion on Property, Plant and Equipnent
Leaschold land is amortized o a steaight lin basis over the period of leass, i.e. 63 yoars.

Deprecintion is caleulated on & straight-fing basis using usefa lives ug specified in Schedule 71 of the Companies Act 2013 except on Lelow
mentioned assels, Useful lives of the following asscts are estlmated by the Manngement on basis of techiticat evaluation ,

Asset type Useful tife estimated by the management
fycars)

Mell Fit ouls . HJ

Building 30

Plant & Machinery (Geming Equipments) 5

The residual values, usetul lives ang methods of depregiation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end ang
adjusted progpectively, il'appropriate. ‘

Intangible Asseis

Intangible assets acquire: sepavately are measured on Mitinl recognition af cost. Following initial recogaition, infangible assets are carried at
cost Wss accumalated amortization wnd accumulated Eapnirment losses, if any, Internally penerated intangible nsselg, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitatized and the expenditure is reSiected in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which e expenditure *
is incurred.
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West Ploneer P'roperties (India) Private Limited
Notes Lo Financial Statements for the year ended 3 [5t March, 2017

Intangible assets are ameortized on u straight line basis over their estinwted useful econoimic lives, The Company uses a rebuttable presuption
that the usefil Hfe of an intangible asset will not exceed ten years (rotn the date when the asset is avaituble for use, If persuasive evidence exists
to the affect that useful life of an intangible asset excecds ten years, the Company amortizes the intangible asset aver the best estimate of its
useful life. Such intangible assets us not yet available far use are tested for impatrment annually, either individually or at the cash-gencrating .
unit tevel. All other intangible nssets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired,

Gains or fosses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are mensured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recoguized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of anortizetion policies ﬂppljed to the Company’s intangible assels is as below:
Computer Software 6 years
Frapairment of Property, Pant and Gquipment and lntangible Assety

The carrying wmunts of assets are reviewed at each badsnce sheot dute, if there is any Indieution of inpairment based on internal/external
factors, An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Kecoverable amount is
greater of the asset’s net schling price and value i use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are diseoused to their present
value at the weighted average cost of capitat,

After impairnent, depreciation is provided o the revised enrrying amount of the asset over its retnaining useful life.

Leoases

Where the Company is the Lessee
Leases where lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and henefits of ownership of the leased itom, are classified as operating leases,
Operating lense payments ate recoguized as an expense in the Stalement of Profit and Loss on a straight-tine basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the Lessor

Leases in which the Company docs not transfer substantizlly afl the risks and benefils of ownership of the asset are vlassilied as operating
leases, Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss o a
straight-line basis over the non-cancellnble period of the lense tegns, Costs, including depreclation are recognized as expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. lnitiad direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage cosls, ete. are reeoguized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

investments

Investments which are rendily realizable and intended to be beld for not more than a yeor are classified as carrent investments, All oter
investments are classified as fong-tenn investments, Current investments are earried at lower of cost and fair valie determined on an individual
investment basis, Long-term investments are carried at ¢ost, However, provision for diminution in vatue is mada 1o recognize a decline other
than temporary in the value of such investments,

On disposal of an iuvestment, the difference between its catrylng amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

[uventories L
tnvestories are valued af lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost comprising of cost of construction/development and of malerials is
determined on FIFO basis, ‘

.

Direct expenditure relating to development activities of properties under construction Is fnventorised. ndirect expenditure (incliding borrowing
costs) during the construction period is inventorised 1o the extent the expenditure is dircetly reluted to construction. Other fndirect expenditure
{including borrowing costs) incurred duling the year not reloted to the constraction activity is charged to the Statemeirl of Protit and Loss. Costs
incusred! items purchnsed specifically for projects are faken as consuned as and when incurred/ received. lnventories include consteuction work.- -
in-progeess. Construction work-in-progress is valued ot cost, which comprises of cost of fund, matcrials, services and other overhé{'ndsrelaicd to
prajects nnder construction, ‘ -

Raw materiats, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.

Reveuue recogiition

Revewie is recognized to the extent it & probable that the economic benafits will How to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. ' '

Lense revenue arising [rom operating leases is accounted for on o straight line basis over the non cancollable period of the lease torny, Straight

 Line lease sentals are shown in Revenue from Operations. These are tnbitied receivables under other cursent assets and advances, Turaver

based rents are recorded as income in the year in whicl they are carned. Common Asca Maintenance recoveries from Licensees are recopiized
as inceme in {e year in which the redated costs ace incurred,




(k)

o

fny

{n)

West Pioneer Properties (Indin} Private Liwited
Notes to Financinl Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2017

Revenre from properiies under construction for sale is recognised on the “percentage of campletion method”, Sale consideration as per duly
exccuted agreements to se / application forms (containing salient terms of agrecyent to sell) is recognised as revenue based on the perceniage
of actual projoct costs incutred thereon to total sstimated project cost. Estimated project cost includes cost of band/ development rights,
borrowing costs, overhends, estimated construction and development cost of such propertivs. Estimates of saleable ared and costs wre roviewed
periodically and effect of uny changes in such estimates is recognised i the period in which such changes are determined. However, when the
total project cost is estimated to exceed total revenues from the project, loss is recognised immediately. Revenue for Game zone is recopnised
when it is eamed and no significant uncerizinty exists as to its realization or collection.

All other revenues are recognized on an accrea) bagis,

Interest ' ‘

Revenue is recogniscd on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount oulstanding ond the rate epplicable. Inferest income g
tcluded under the head ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and £.085,

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company's tight to receive payment is established by the batance sheet date.

Borrowing Cosis

Borrowing costs consist of interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred i contection with arrangement of borrowings,

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o acquistlion, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time fo
get rendy for its intended use or sale are eapitalised as part of cost of the respective nsset. All other barrowing cosls are expensed in the period
they are incursed.

Foreign Cuvrency Translations

(l} Initiad Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded i the reporting currency, by spplying to the foreign currency amount the exchunge rate between the
reporting currency and the foreign ciirency at the date of the transaction,

(it} Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in tormng of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate nt the date of e transaction; and non-monelery items which are carried
al fair vlue or ofler sinvilar valuation denominated in o foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values
were determingd,

(li} Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on (he settfement of monetary items or on Company's monetary itens at rates different from those at which they
were inilially recorded during the year, or teported in previous finaneial statements, are recognised as income oF os expense in the year in which
they arise,

Retirsment and other employee benefits

Retiremient benefit in the form of Provident Fund is u defined contribution scheime and contributions thereto are charged 1o the Stetement of
Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the find are due. There are o other obligations other than conseibution payabie to (the
fund. ..

Gratuity liability is « defined benefit plan towards retirement benefits, covering substantislly all employees. ‘The benefit is unfanded, Cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit plas is determined using the projected wnit credin actuarial valuation method, ‘

Actuarint gains / losses ure immediately taken to Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred.

fucome tiuxes e
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred taxes. Current income tex is measured af the amount expected to be paid 1o the tax authoritics i,
accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. Deferred income tax rellocts the impact of current year timing dilferences betwesn tixable incots

and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlicr years. ’ : ;

Deterred tax is measured based on tax tates and tax laws cnacted or substatively enacted at the batance sheet date. Deferred tax ssels and .
deferred tax lisbililies ave offset, if a legatly enforceable right exists to set off current 1ax assets agsinst current tax liabilitics and-the deferred
tax asscts und deferred tax Habilities relate lo taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws, Deferred tax assets are rgeoghnized oaly”’
Lo the exient that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient fulure taxable income will be available against which such deferred tnx assels con
be reatized. In situations where the company has unabsotbed dopreciation or cumy forward tox fosses, alf deferred 1ax assets are fébognj,sed only -
if thers is virtunf certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits, Lo

At cach balance sheet date, the Company re-nssesses its unrecognized deferrcd tix assets. I recognizes wnrecognized defirred tax assets 10 the
extent that it hus become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the cose may be that sufficient future taxuble income wiil be available
ugaiyst which such deterrad tax assets can be reolived. '

Carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed af each botance shaet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amaunt of a deferred
tax asset to the extent thal it is no longer reasonably corsain or virtually certain, as the case may be, thes sullicient future taxable income wiit be
available ngaingt which defersed tax usset can be renfized, Any such weile-down is reversed te the exient that it becomes reasonbly corfin or
virtuatly certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be avaitable,
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West Pioncer Properttes (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financinl Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2017

Expenditure on New rojects and Substantint Expansion

Expenditure dircotly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as
purt of indiregt construction cost to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other
indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is aiot related to construction activity nor is
incidental theeeta is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Tncome earned during construction period is deducted from total of the jndirect
expenditure,

Ali direct capital expenditure on expansion is capitalized. As regards indirect expenditure on expansion, only thal portion is cagitalized which
represents marginal increase in such expenditure invoived as n result of capital expansion. Both direet and indirect expenditure are cupitalized
only if they incrense value of the nsset beyond its original standard of performance,

Segmient Repurting Pollcy
Identification nf Seguents :
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of praducts and services provided, with

cach segment representing a strategic business it that offers different nroducts and scrves different markets, Analysis of geopraphical
segtuents is bused on the wreas in which major eperating divisions cf the Company operate.

Inter segsnent Transfers ;
The Company generally accounts for inter segment sales and teansfers g if the sales or transfers wera 1o thind parlies at current muzket prices

Alfocation of Common Costs ¢
Common allccable costs are allocated o cach segment according to the refative contribution of each segment to the total common costs.

Unallocated Ttems
Include general corpurute income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment.

Segment Policy :
The Conipany prepares its segment informution in conformity with the aceounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting financial
statements ot ihe Compuny as a whole.

Earnings per shoare . :

Basic carings per share is caloulated by dividing net profit or fuss for the year attributable to equity sharehobdoss after dedacting peeference
dividend and attributable tuxes by the weighted average number of cquily shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of caleulating
dituterd 2arnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable o equity sharcholders and thz weighted average tumber of share
outstunding during the year are adjusied for the elfects of sl dilutive potential equity shares.

. Provisions

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past everd; if it is probuble that an outlow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, in respect of which a reliabic cstimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and arg <determined
based on best estimated amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance shoct date aid
adfusted 1o reflect cwrent best cstimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalenty

. . N . ! ‘
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cosh at bank and ln hand o short-fernt investments. wity an
originud maturity of three nonths or less. Cy ’

Contingent Liabilities e,

A contingent liability s & possible obligation that.avises from past events whose existence will be contirmed by the occurrence or non-
accurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the contrat of the Company or a present obfigation that is not recopnized because il is
not probable thiat an outflow of resources will be required o settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in extrernely tare cascs where
there is 4 liability that cannot be recognized because it cannel be measured teliably. The Compary does not recoguize a contingerit liabitity but
discloses Hts existence in the financial statements. LT )

;

Measweement of EBITDA .

As permitied by Scledule [1F 10 the Companies Act 2013, the Company has opied 1o present earnings before finance cost, 1ax, dc';'l‘rdéimion and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line iterm on the face of the Statement of Profi and Loss. The Company tieasurcs EBITDA on the basis of
profit / (loss) trom continning operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include Jdepreciation and amortization expense, fiaunee
¢osts and tax expense but includes other income.




West Pioncer Propertics (Indin) Private Limited
Notes 10 Financial Staterments for the year ended 3 ist March, 2017

Share Capitai
As it Asat
3ist March, 20057 315t March, 2016
4 L4
Avthurised
44,55,476 (3 1st March, 2016: 44,53,476) Equity Shares of 210 ench 4,45,54,760 4.45,54,760
2,20,68,345 (31t March, 2016: 2,20,88,345) Optionally Convertitle Cunuilative Redeemuble 22,08,83,450 22,08,83 450
Preference Shares (OCCRPS) of 10 eagh
¥
2,70,0G0 (3 st March, 2016: 2,70,100) Redeemable Preforence Shares of 210 ench 27,001,000 27,01,000
36,96,079 (3151 Marcly, 2016: 36,96,079) Unclassificd Shares of 210 each 3,69,60.790 3,69,50,790
30,51,00,000 30,51,00.900
issued, subseribed and padil-np
4455476 (315t March, 2016: 44,55,476) Equity Shares of T10 each Rully paid ay 4,45.54,760 4,45,54,760
2,20,58,345 (3181 March, 2016: 2.29,88,345) OCCRPS of 210 each fulty paid up [carrying 22,08,83 450 - 22,08,83,450
dividend ot the rate of baak rale plus 2%, refor Nots 3 (c) ' ]
270,300 (315t March, 2016; 2,70,100) Redeemable Preferenice Shares of 210 e-wh fulty paid 27,01,080 27,01,00%
up [eurrying dividend at nid rate, refer Note 3 (d)
Totnl Lssned, Subseribed and Paid-up Capital 26,81,39,219 26,81,39,210
{i) Reeonciliation of shares outstznding at beginning and a¢ end of the reporting yenr'
Bquity shares
315t Mareh, 2017 31st March, 2016

Ne. 4 No. e
At beginning of the year 44,55,476 4,45,54,760 44,55.476 4,45,54,760
Outstanding at end of the )}ear 44,55,476 445,54, 760 44,855,476 4,45,.54,760
Prefegence shares- OCCRPS .

' 31st March, 2017 31st Mareh, 2016

No, 4 Ne. g
At beginning of the year 2,20,88,345 . 2,08,83.450 2,20,88,3!!5 22,08 63,450
Outstanding nt cud of the year 2,20,88,345 23,08,53,450 2.20.38,345 22.08,33,450
Redeemable Proference shares A

Jist Marcek, 2017 J1st March, 2016 !

Ne. L4 No, 4
At beginning of the year 2,760,100 27,01,000 2,770,100 27,01,000
Ontstanding at end of the year 2,70,100 27,601,000 2,70,109

27,801,000

{In Terms/ Rights nitehied fo Equity Shares

o ,i
The Company has only one class of cquity shares having par value of 210 per share. Fach holder of vquity shares is entitled to one vole por
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board nf Directors is subjest to approval-of
$he shareloltders in the casning Annual General Meeling, !

For the ycar ended 315t March, 2017, no dividend is proposed fo be paid to the equily shareholdess (31st March, 2016 Nib),

In the gvent of Hquidalion of the Company, holders of equily shares will be eatitled 1o receive reminining assets of the Ceﬁ)pa'uy, afier.
distribution of sl preterentiat amounts, The distribution will b in proportion 1o the number o equity shaes held by the sharchclders.

N
.

{&} Terrs of Conversion/ Redemption of OCCRPS CoAE

The Company has issued 2,20,88,345 OCCRPS of €10 eoch. As.per terms of the alletment, the Company shall declare and pay dividends and
all vapaid dividends, if sny, subject to the Compsmy having distriyutable profits in nceordance with provisions of Section 123 of the Coraponics
Act, 2613, Dividend rate shail be subject to revision every year on basis of Bank rate prevailing as on 3151 March, immediately preceding the
dale of mesting of the Company's Board of Diseclors a1 which the Batance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss pertzining lo the selevant
financial year are approved by the Board. The rate of dividend will be such Runk Rate plus 2%, provided that in no cnse the dividend rate shall
exceed 10% p.n. The dividend rate is 8.75% for the year ended March, 2017 {315t March, 2016 : 9.75%, )




Wast Pioncer Propertics (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2017

Each holder of GCCRPS can opt to convest its preference shares into cquity shiares on a date not being beyond expiry of the 19" anniversary of

the tespeetive Date of lssue ie. 30™ Aprit 2007 and 19" December 2010, If a helder oxercises the conversion option, the Compary will issue |
cquily share for each preference share held.

IFQCCRPS holders do not exercise their converston oplion, all preference shares will be redeemable at end of the 10 anniversary from the date

of issue. In event of tiquidation of the Compaity before conversion/ redemption of OCCRPS, holders of OCCRPS will have priority over equily
shares in payment of dividend and repaymient of capital,

{d) Teems of Couversion/ Rcdemptiol\; of Redeemabie Preference Sharcs

The Company has issued 2,70,100 Preference shares of 210 cach.

The preference shares do not carry right to dividend. Also, they carry right to vote only in accordance with provisions of section 47 of the
Cotpanics Act, 2013,

Redemption of Redeetitalle Preference Shares:

) At option of the Company:
The preference shares would be redeemable at any lime within 20 years from the date of issue at fhwe option of the Comipany by giving & 48

hours pudor written notice to the holder(s} at the redemption price calculated bused on Internal Rate of Retarn (IRR} of [1% compounded
anially from the date of receipt of the last call money till the date of redemption,

il. Atoption of the Preference Sharcholders:
- The preference shares would be redeemable ot any time within 20 years from the dute of issue at the option of the holders by giving a 15 days

prior witten notice to the Company ot a redemption price as per the specified rates compounded anvually from the date of receipt of last call
money till the date of redemption. '

(e} Shares held by Holding Company
Qut of the equity and preference shares issued by the Company, the shares held by its holding company are es below:

As at Asat
Jist Marek, 2017 3lst March, 2016
. 3 L4
Winmore Leasing and Holdings Limited, the holding compaiy
44,55,476 (315t March, 2016: 44,55,476) Fquity Shares of 210 each 4,45,54,760 4,45,54,760
2,20,88.333 (31st March, 20162 2,20,88,333) QCCRPS of 210 each 22,08,83,330 22,08,83.330
26,54,38,090 20,54,38,090

The holding campany has 100% sharcholding including 50 shares representing 0.01% held by individuals as nominee holders,

() Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares tn the COnpRnY

3ist March, 2017 3tst March, 2016 ,
% helding in % loleting in
. No, the class No. the class
(i) Fquity Shares of 210 cach oo, .
Winaiore Leasing natd Holdings Limited 44,355,476 100.00% 44,55,476 ' ) '}GO.QG%

(Hoiding Cowpany} - vy
(i) OCCRPS 0f210 exch fully paid ?, o
Winmnore Lensing and Holdings Limited 2,20,88,333 99.99% 2,20,88,333 99.99%

{Iolding Company)

{iii} Redeemable Preference Sharcs of 210 each

Amit Jatia (HUE) 64,000 . 23.7% 64,000 L %
Surendira Kumar Mohatin 55,000 20.4% 55,000 TR 204%
Gaurny Mohatta 35,100 13.6% 35,100 13.0%
West Letsire Resorts Limited 25,000 " 9.3% 25,600 9.3%
Smbta Jatln jointly with Amit Jatia 25,000 9.3% 25,000 2.3%
Ishita Mohaitn 20,000 74% 20,000 7.4%
Usha Devi Intin juintly with Banwavilal Jatia 16,500 6.1% [6,500 C6.1%

As per rocords of the Company including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from share holders rcg:\rd__i'ng
benefivial interest, the above shareholding represents both legat and beneficial ownership of shares,
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West Pioncer Properties (Indin) Private Limited
Noltes to Financigl Statements for the yeer ended 315t March, 2017

Reserves and Surplus

As at As at
315t Mnrch, 2017 31st March, 2016
Sceuvitics Prewmium 2 X
Balance as per last Fnancinl sintesents 1,77,75,06,313 1,77,75,06,313
Closing Balance 1,77,15,06,313 1,77,75,06,313
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statenent of Profit and Luss
Baltance a5 per last Financial Statements - (73,12,83,546) (70,03,92,796)
(Loss) for the year ¢ (2,07.41,695) (3,09,00,750)
Net Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss (75,20,35,241) (73,12,93,546)
Total Reserves and Surplus 1,02,54,71,072 1,04,62,12,767
Long-term Borrowings . Non-eurrent Pordion Current Maturitles
As at As At
3ist March, 2017 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2017 3tst March, 2016
k4 4 ¥ L4

Term Lonns

tndian Rupeq Loan from Banks (secured) £,17,22,33,537 66,81,28,381 03,26,580 27,02,89.010
(Refer ()(1)(5i1) betow)

Other Loans nnd Advances

Loan (Unsceured) {Refer (iv) below) 26,08,08,000 20,08,00,000 - -
1,43,35,33,537 92,89,28,381 93,26,580 7,92,89,010

The above smounts inclnde

Secured Borrowings (Refer (%)) below 1,17,27,33,537 66,81,28,38} 93,26,580 27,02,89.010

Unseeured Borrowings (Refer {iv) below 26,08,00,600 26,08,00,000 -

Amount disclosed under the head 'other shrvent - . {93,26,580) {21,02,89,019)

liabilities’ (Refer Note 10

Net amount 1,43.35,33,537 92,89,28,381 - -

Term lonns balance as at March 31, 2017 represents:

Term loon - Lease Rentat Discounting availed by the Company in June 2016 af rate of interest equivalent to one year MCLR of the bank, As at
st March, 2017 the MCLR was 9.75 %. The loa is sceured by first charge on the Kalyan Shopping Mail and hypothecation of Lease
Receivables from the said property. The loan is repayable from July 2016 to June 2028.
Schedule of Repuyment of Loan :

319t Mavch, 2047 3ist March, 2016

k4 4
Not later than one year 88,93,118 4,25,60,000
Later than one year but not fater than five years 13,12,64,002 25,00,00,000
Later than 5 years 88,27,15,369 41,75,00,000
1,02,28,72,489 71,00,00,000

Term loan taken in March 2017 at rale of interest eauivatent 1 Stx Month MCLR of the bank pius 1.45%, As at 31st Maich, 2019 the rate of
interest was 11.15%., The loan is scewied by a first charge on the land, boildings and hypotheeation of receivables of Metro Gmniiti 8¢ Kalyan

The toun s repuyable from June 2020 1o March, 2022 in cight equal quarterly installments o i
Schedule of Repayment of Loan ¢ : T A
315t March, 2017 5 3ist March, 2016
2 Lo
Not Jaler than one year “ 22,74,00,000
Later tha one year bul stol fater than five years 15,85,59,246 . .
Later than § years - T Co -
15,85,59,246 - 22.74,00,000

The Conpany does not have nay continaing detaults in repuayment of the loahs and interest as at the reporting date. VI

:a, P A .
(iii) Indian Rupee Lean from Banks includes Loan fron Kotak Mahindra amounting 10 £ 6,28,382 (315t March, 2016 : 10,17,391) which s secured

by an exelusive charge by way of hypothecation of o vehicle and is repayable in 35 cquated monthly instaliments,

Schedale of Repaynrent of Loan ;
31st March, 2017 Jist Mareh, 2016

T T .
Not later than one year ' 4,33,462 389,010 °
Lates than one year but not Tater than Bve yeurs 1,904,920 ' 6,258,381
Later than § years : - -
6,28,382 10,{7,391
1,18,20,6(,117 93,84.17,301
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West Ploneer Properties (India) Prdvate Limited
Notes to Financial Staterments for the year ended 315t March, 2017

(iv} Other loans and advances batance as at 3 1st March, 2017 represents {Insecured Losn taken

repayable after March 2019,

Deferved ‘Taxes

Deferred Tax Linbilities
Differences between book and tax dopreciation
Lease rentals taxnble on receipt basis

\

Deferred Tux Assets

Provision for doulnfid debts

Unabsorbed deprecintion

Uinabsorbed capital loss

Expenditure deductivle on actual payiment

Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Deferred tax assets/(Hability) recognized

The projects of (hic Cotpany being capital intensive mny not generate reusonable profits in the foresesable futire an

on carry forward losses have not been recognised,
Other Long-Terw Linbilities

in January 2016. The loan is interest-free and is

As af As at
31st March, 2017 st March, 2016

T 4
8,14,96,906 14,87,76,351
64,345 6,48,808
§,16,61,251 11,94,25,159
39,89,193 $6,86,713
8,14,96,906 11,87,76,351
15,71.34,127 15,71 34,127
5,52,008 5,07,782
24,31,72,324 28,51,04,973
16,15,11,073 16,56,79.814

d hence Deferred Tax assels

As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2046
L4 ?
Retention Morics 35,03,648 5541333
Qthers
Security Deposits Ruccived 7,24,23,342 6,87.80,976
7,50,37.030 7,43,22,309
Provistons
Agat CAsat
3J1st March, 2017 3ist March, 2016
f.oug terin Short term Long term Short term
2 k4 T E4
Proviston for Empluyee Beucfits
Provision for Gratuity ( Refer note 33) 17,06,809 79,916 15,59,814 83,494
17,06.809 79,916 15.5%,814 83,494
Short Terint Borvowings
As at Asat ;
315y Mareh, 2017 31st Mareh, 2016
¥ T
Intcrest @) 11.50% (315t Mareh, 2016 - 11.50%) on unseeurcd Loan repayable on danand . A ;'Y‘J_.QO,GOO
- 179,006,000
Other Current 4.inbilities . / S
As ut Asal * ol
315t March, 2047 3dst Mareh, 2016
T . LI
Trade Payables (Refer note 38 for details of dues Lo Micro and Small Entcrprises) 5,22,65.570 4,15,54,559
Other Liabilitics T _ k
Current Maturitics of Long-Term Borrowings (Refer note 5) 93,26,580 - 2?,02.89,9:0
Overdrawn Bank bulince - book debts 17,42,467 co 21,5407
Crpital Creditors 1,43,34,729 i3 1259,05,607
Interest Accrocd Bug Not Due on Borrowings - 45,557
Security Deposits Received - 43,53,267 57,43,523
Retention Money (,80,i8,044 1,87,45,500
Revenue Billed in advance 7,03,864 15,14.549
Advances from Customers and Clients $,95,17,141 5,39|_12,281
Statutory Dues Payatle 1,92,68,796 1,86,00,998
Salary Payable 58.59,795 . 56,93,072
Other Payables {incl. facility money collected from custormers und clients) 2,13,90,350 1,25, 10,594
Amount duc L custoiners - nnearned revenue on sale of property 5,83,72,199 7.23,82 282
25,28.87,242 47,74,97 3300
INSL52.812 51,90,51.589

N,

; S
{\{'\..._.4—'/. (5
Sy N
S

!

i
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West Pioneer Propertics (Fndia) Prjvate Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 st Mareh, 2087

Intangible Asseis
Contputer software Total.
¥ ?
Gross Block .
At Ist Agpril 2015 21,58,299 24,58,299
Additions 2,209,421 2,209,424
At 31st March, 2016 23,87,7120 23,8% 710
Additions 20,64,123 20,64,123
At 31st March, 2047 ; 44,581,843 44,51,843
Amortization
At 15t Aprid 2015 §8.47,734 18,447,134
Churge for the venr 77,577 71,517
At 31st March, 2016 19,25,311 19,25,311
Charge {or the year 1,68,544 1,68,544
At 3Est March, 2017 20,93,855 28,93,885
Net block ' .
At 31st March, 2016 4.62.400 4.62,40%
At 3tst March, 2017 23,57,984% 23,537,988
Non-current Luvestments
As at "As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
k4 ?

Trade investments (valued at cost waless stated otherwise)

Unquoted equity instruments

Investiment in Substdiary
59,085,166 (31st March, 2016 59,05,166) Equity sftares ot'2 10 each fully paid up 26,04,76,879 26,04,76.879
of Westfield Entertainnent Pyt Lid

26,04,76,879 26,04,76,879 -
Loans and Advances
Non-curient Current
As at As at
31st vnreh, 2017 Jist Mueeh, 2016 Jist March, 2017 Jist March, 2016
4 k4 4 2
Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good 1,00,11,193 1,558,908 993 9,648 0,618
‘Total 1,011,193 1,55,98,093 9,048 L 9048
Loans and Advances to Refated Partics
{Refer Note 29) ) .
Unscerred, considered good 53,83,810 33.83,810 . ' .
Total 53,8380 33.83,810 - L i
Advances Recoverable in eash or in kind - ) J?- ‘L
Capital Advaice 17,67,07% . . { :
Unsecured, considered good - - 2,05,77,532 29013230
Total 17,67,078 - 2,05,77,532 - 2.90,13,234
Other Loans and Advances ~ Unsecured
considered good .
Advance Tax paid (net of provision of Z Nil 4,12,08,904 5,86,03,007 - Sl D
(31st March, 2016 % Nil)) PR
Batances wlih statutory/government autloritics - . . 1.04.921 : i B }';’62;079 :
Prepaid Expenses 1,28,845 188,708 21,94,948 18,546,084
Total 4,13,37,749 587.91,718 22,99,869 19,18,163
Total 5,85,99,830 7,77,74,518 2,28,87,040 3,09 41,045
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West Ploneer Properties (India) Private Lintited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st Marcls, 2017

Trade Reccivables

As at As al
31s1 March, 2017 3lst March, 2016
¥ k4
Quistanding for a period exceeding six montiss from the date they beeame due for
payment
Sceured, considered good 56,96,986 i,03,94,233
Unsecured, considered good 4,02,80,408 4,65,30,493
Doubtful H 1,13,22,008 2,13,99,866
Totsl 5,72,99,401 7.83,24,592
Provision for Doubtful Reccivables {},13,22,008) {2,13,99,866)
Totnl {A) 459,771,393 5.69.24,726
Giher Recelvables
Secured, considered good 193,753,433 1.98,97.633
Unsecured, considered good 3,20,03,974 . 2,60,26,579
Dowbtful £5,88,001 67,82,474
Total 5,29,67410 526,36,686
Provision for Doubtful Receivables (15,88,001) {67,12,474)
Total (8) 5,13,70,409 4,59,24,212
Total (A} + (B) 9,73.56,802 16,28,48,937
Other Assets
Non-cutrent Curremt
Asat As nt
31tst March, 2017 3ist March, 2016 3ist Mareh, 2017 31st Maveh, 2016
4 k4 3 £4
Unsecured, considerced pood unfess strted
otherwise
Fixed Deposhis - - 15,00,000 1,49,05,433
frefer nofe 19)
Unamortised Expenditure
Unamortised Anciliary Borsowing Cost 97,03,833 79,00,313 19,43,600 30,19.675
Others
Acerued lncome - - 5.31.86¢ 20,99,704
Others* (Refer note 29) - - £2,99,378 35,017,359
Total 97,863,833 79,00,313 §2,74,239 2,35,32,113
*Others include interest of 7 10,453,421 (3154 March, 2016 ; 5,07,358) acerued on Loins and Advances (o n Related Party.
Inventorics ,
Asal As gt e
3lst March, 2017 Jtst Marelf, 2046
4 Ty oF
Construction Material £4,00,205 19,03.428 ¥
Construction Work-in-Progress 1,46,58,87,178 1,15.48,25:006.
Stores and Spares 1§,11.4487 ¢ 6,87.547
Total 1,46,87,98.881 1,15,71,65.581
Current Invesiments
As at . »}s at.; PR
31st March, 2017 3Lst March, 2016
4 s
Cument Investments fvafued at lower of cost and fair value) /l-;, "
Unguoted Equity Instruments
1 (3lst March, 2016 : I} share of % 10 fully paid up in Hawcoplast 22 22
lvestments aad Trading Limited
29B9.87 (315t March, 2016 1 Nil) units having NAY of 2 1003.385 each in UTI Money 30,00,000 v
Market Fond
14970.806 {3151 March, 2016 : Nil) units having NAV of  100.1950 ezch in Birla Sun Life 13,00,000 -

Caslh Plus

45,00,022

i
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West Ploneer Properties (Indiu) Private Limitcd
Noies to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 st March, 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Nou current

Current

As nt As at
3ist Marel, 2087 Jist March, 2016 3ist Mareh, 2017 Mst Mareh, 2016
£ 2 2 k4
Cash on hand . B 6,00,711 5.36,143
Balances with banks.
—On current accounts - - 78.70.634 27843471
' . . R4,71,345 2.83.79,614
Other bank balances
- Deposits with remaining maturity of more - -
{han 2 monthg *
- Depasits with remaining maturily of less 15,00,000 1,49,05,435
than 12 months *
~Margin money deposit ** - - 25,00,000 25,00,000
- - 40.00,000 17405438
Amount disclosed under catrrent assets (Refer . {15,00,000) (1,49,05,435)
note §6)
Balance 2500400 25,00,004
Total - - 1,89,78,345 3,08,79,614

* The fixed deposits are created for the Debt Service Rescrve Account. As per terms of Term Loan Agreement, the Company shalt awintain

Debt Service Reserve Accouat amount equivalent to | months interest.

**Margin moncy deposits given as security

Margin moncy deposits with a carrying amount of T10,60,000 {31st Murch, 2016: 210,00,000) are subjcct to lien with Maharashtra Pallution

Condrol Board, Kalyan

Margin money deposits witl a carying amount of ¥5,00,000 (315t March, 2016: ¥3,00,000) are subject 1o fien with Mahaeasinra Polluzion

Control Board for Kalyan Mall

Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of T10,00,000 (31st March, 2016: 210,00,000) are subject {0 lien witl: Maharasira Polluion

Conteol Board, Aurangabad

Revenue from Operations

Sales- Property Development - (Refer Nots 32)

Lease Revenue

Lease Straightlining

Revenue Share

Other Operating Incowme *

Sales ~ Game zone **

Total

* Other operating incomse includes property tax amounting to ¥ 29,38,190 (31st Maech, 2016;
60,83,584) recovered wowards Kalyan Mall

*+* Sales - Game zone is net of taxes

Other lacome

inlerest on

- hank deposits

-~ others
Dividend income on investments
Other income *

Total
* Qther Income includes Income Tax Refund of ¥ 59,91,.793 (315t March, 2016: 74,737)

For year ended
Jist March, 2007

far yenr cuded
35t Mareh, 2016

4 4
7,29,05,427 32,10,75,287
7,08.49,816 6,54,84.958
{15,67,843) (38.42,720)
10,95,79,370 9,91,93,007
11,12.80,356 15.93.63.249 °
30,99,270 I S
36,61.37.396 G4,13.73,782 ,

For year ended

¥

For year caded

It March, 2017 Jtst March, 2016
3 e
20,72.148 ’ ‘ -16,27,606
6,33,149 £13,61,085
797,419 794,582
1,05,15,355 32,10,033
1,40,18,091 1,69,93,306

\"‘I "

’
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West Ploneer Propertics {India) Private Limited
Notes to Finaneial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Cost of Construction of Properties

Inventory al Beginning of the year
Add: Project Related Expenses

Less: nventory at end of the year
Cost of Construction of Properties |
Details of Cost of Construetion of Propertics
Devetoprment Costs

Consultaney & Architeet Fees

Civil Work & Bxpenses to Contractors
Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (net of capitalization and inventorised ¥ 2,53,88,719 (Previous year
(¥2,78.82,015)

Contribution to Provident andd other Funds

Gratuity Expense (Reler note 33)

Staff Welfare Expenses

Total

Other Expenscs

Pawer and Fuel

Water Charges

Rent

Rates and Taxes *

Insurance

Repairs and Maintenance
Advertising and Sales Promotion
Brokerage and Discounts

Travelling and Conveyance
Communication Costs

Printing and Stationery

Legal and Professional Fees

Payment 10 Auditors {Refer Note 37)
Utility Manageiment Service Charges
Security Charges

Provision for Doubtlul Delds {net) #*
Miscellancous Expenses

Total

* Rates myd Taxes inglude property tax paid amounting to 2 1,01,58,499 (3 1st Muarcls, 2016:
1,04,32,060) towards Kalyan Mall

** Provision for Doubiful Debis is net of %,49,48,533/- reversal of excess provision pertaining
1o previcus year {315t March 2016 1 T 43,26,75 [}

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation of Tangible Asscls
Amedization of Intangible Assels

Total

For year ended

For yeor ended

31t Maveh, 2017 3ist Murch, 2016
2 ?
1,15,64,78,034 1,27,72,40.335
40,29.78,108 18,79,61,118
1,55,94,56,142 §,46,52,01,453
1,46,72,87,384 1,15,64,78,034
9,21,6R,758 30,87,23,419
49,15,14) 19,54,52.690
8,606,497 27.28,741
6,59,356,068 13,49,05.737
2,04,31,052 6,56,36,251
9,21,68,758 30,87,23,419

For year ended
3st Mareh, 2017
T

3,73.09.827

For year ended
J1st Murch, 2016
T

3.41.34.28%8

13,24,70% 11,31,769
8,171,721 4,75.96k
6,77.099 3,08.430
4,01,28,651 3,63,40,448
For year ended For year ended
Jist March, 2017 31t Marely, 2016
? T
5,66,35,494 1,24,17,531
11,04.912 10,52,806
1.60.31,699 97.53.020
1,04,14,882 1,04,04 028
15,82.892 1703374
1,73,04,26! 2,03,61,810
1,00.04.347 1.67.61,7)17
2,00,000 931,400
24,79,960 2355278
746,619 S 3364027
7,20,897 Jazda,
1.51,07,756 C0b,63,057 "
455,199 " 9433
571332110 32201961 - -
1,28,22.318 1,35,35,550
5,98.963 57,90,520
27,24,652 26,8937
14,91,68,662 . :21,52,52,689 ., -
gt
3 o
For year eanded For year ended
3Est March, 2017 318t Mareh, 2016
t H )
6,00,13,943 '5,75.14,834
168,544 1,577
6.08.12.487

7892411 °

i

:-i;!.'
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West Pioncer Propertics (Indin) Private Lintted
Notes to Financiol Statements for the year ended 3 (st March, 2017

Finance Costs

Interest Expense *

Bank Charges

Amortization of Anciliary Costs
Total

-* Net of Capitalisation € $,36,60,624 (31§1 March, 2016: 2 6,13,64,213)
Earnings Per Share

Loss after Tax ¥

Less: Preference share Dividend and dividend distribution tax
Loss nttributable to Equity Shareholders 2

Weighted average number of Sharcs

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share ¥

Segment Infornintlon

Business Segnients

For year ended
J1st March, 2047

For year ended
JLst March, 2016

t ?
5,27,78,766 6,80,14,233
2,00,184 84,513
$6,39,674 31,60,125
§,96,18,624 2,12,58871

3lst Mareh, 2007

(2,07,41.695)
2,32,6),872
(4,40,03,567}
44,55,476
(9.88)

The Company is involved in construction of shopping malls and leasing commercinl space therein in India,

The Compuny has defined its operations into four majot businesses: Retaif, Residentini nnd
Development. Particulars of the type of produets and services provided by each reportable segment

Retail Segment includes activities related (o construction and teasing of shopping malls sad related services,

Entertainment Centre)
Residential Segment includes aclivities related 16 construction and sale of residential premises,

Office Segment includes activities related to construction and sale of commercial premises,

Warehousing Development Seguent includes construction and sale of warehousing premises,

st March, 201{;

{3.09.00.75]

2,70,41,037
{5.7941,788)
44,585,476

{(13.00)

Oftice Developments tor Sule and Warchausing
are us follows:

and also Game zone sales {(Family



West Ploneer Properties (Indig) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Year ended 31st March, 2017

Retail Residential Office Warehousing | Un allocable Total

REVENUE

Extemal Sajes 29,32,31,968|  5,5555910] 1,73.49,518 36,61,37,396,
Total Revenue 29,32.31,968 §,55,55910 1,73,49,518 - - 36,61,37,396
RESULT ,

Segment Result i 1,91,‘59.214 (WO38A4T2) (1,12,41.813) {(3L3t,66M - 9,48,47,262
Unalloeated Corporate Expenses : 1.09.88.424 T.09.88.424
Operating Profil 11,91,59,214 (1,00,38,472)1 (1,12,41,813) (331,667  (7,09,88,424) 2,38,58,838
Finance Cosly 4,76,48,593 - 91,49,824 18,20,207 5.86,18,624
Other Income 23,87.953 1,40,850 1,14,89,278 1,49,18.091
lrcome taxes - - -
Profit afler Tax from ordinary Activities 7.38,94,585 (98,97,622)] (L1241.81%) (1,21.81492)| (6,13,19,353) (2,07,41,695)
Extraordinary lem, net - - . .
Net Profit 71.38.,98,585 (9897,622)] (1,1241.813) (L2LE1492Y  (6,13.19,333) (2.07,41,698)
Segmenl Assels 1,21,98,27,436]  82,08,50,166 17,71,84,314F  60,43,99,381 - 2,82,22,61,297
Unallocated Corparate Assels 28,77,49,089 28,77.49.089
Tolal Assels 1,21,98,27,436]  82,08,50,166 17,71,84,314]  60,43,99,381] 28,77,49,089 3,11,00,10,386
ch.ment Linbilities 74,10,84,255] 50,62,11,200 ' 19,56,30,011 9.82.67,182 || 14,54,11,93,557
Unallocated Corpornte Liabilities 27.52,06,547 27,52,06,547
Total Liabilities 74, 14,84,255)  50,62,11,209 19,56,30,011 9.82,67,182)  27.582,06.547 1.81.64,00,104
Capital Expesditures

Tungible Assets 5,44,10,091 19.32,362 - 16,21,649 6,778,431 5,86,42,533
Intangible Assets 9,43,360 . . - 10,80,763 20.64,123
Depreciation 5,86,23,600 7,55,761 - 3,020,358 6,30,759 6,08,12.487
Year ended 31st March, 2016

Retail Residential Offige Warchousing | Un allocable Total

REVENUE

External Sales 32,01,98,495)  9,75,73,332]  3,70,01,955[ | 8,65,00,000 0d,12,73,782
Total Revenuae 32,01,98,495 9,75,73,332 3,70,01,985]  18,65,00,000 - 64,12,73,782
RESULT : .

Segment Result 8,57,14,221} (1,52,89,420) 66,73,365 45,784,388 - 8,56,76,554
Unallocated Corporate Expenses 6,23,11,739 6.23,11,739
Opernting Profit 8,97.14,221F  (1,52,89,420) 66,73,365 45,78,088) (6,23,11,730 2,33,64,8158
Finance Cosls 5,13,54,663 20067500 1.76.84.552 1.02.686 7.11.58.}37,.1 .
Other Income 11,03,150 2,00,000 1.56.20,156 1,69.93,3006) 5 . ./
Income taxes - - rasy
Profit afler Tax from ordinary Activitics 3,94,52,488 (1,50,84,420) 45,606,615 (1,31,06,164) (4,67,24,2690 . (3,09,00,750)
Extraordinary llem, net “ B - &
Net Profit 3,94,52,458) (1,50,89,420) 45,606,615 (1,31,06.16{8) (4,67,24,269) (3.09,00,750;
Segment Assels 1,25,80,84,666; 49,29,10,996| 17,74,40,532| 62,46,93,943 4 2.5531,30,137|
Unaflocgted Corporate Assets 30.30,67,727| 303067727
Totnl Assets L25,80,84,666) 49,29,10,996 17.7440,5321  62,46,93,943]  30,30,67,727 2.85.6.1:’,‘{?;864 \

(S04

Segment Liabilitics 59,38,84,574] 38,53,00,856 14,69,36,960[ 13,84,21,319 . 1,26,‘35,14‘),7 10
Unaltocated Corporate Linbilities 21,72.96,177 27,72,96,177
Total Linbilities 59,38,84,574]  38,53,06,856 14,69,36,2601  13,84,21,319 27,72,96,177  1,54,18,45,887
Capital Expenditures - -
Tangible Assets 3,92,59,514 $5,650 - - 18,53,330 1108494
lntangibie Assets . - - 2,2942] 229,421
Depreciation 5,54,25,263 6,39,356 1.89.979 739814 57592411



West Ploncer Properties (Indis) Pelvate Limited
Motes to Financial Statermenis for the venr ended 31t March, 2017

i Related Party Disclosures
Related Parties: Names of Related Partics and Reintionships:

A Enterprise where control exists

Holdiag Company Winmore Leasing and Holdings Ltd.
Substdiary Westfield Entertalnnent (P) L4, {w.e.f. 15th January 2016)
B Key Manngement Personnel ; Gaurang Agrawal ~ Chief Executive Officer (CEG)

{w.c.f 26th October 201 5)
Sundeep Kumar - Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Minal Kardile-Company Seeretarv-(w.c.f. 23rd November 2G15)

Disclositre of Transactions between the Company and Related Partics and Outstanding Balances as at the year end,
3ist March, 2017 3st Mareh, 2016

4 b4
A, Enterprise where Control Exists
Westficlid Entertainment Private Limfted
Interest Income 5.97.846 2.08.388
Loan Given ) . .
Amount duc from related party 64,29,23¢ 38.91,168
{Refer Note No. 14 and 16)
« B Key Manapement Personngt
Remuneration
Amount paid to related party 1,08,62,060 69,36,501
Amount due to related party - (20,60,000)
30 Leases
Company as Lessor
The Company has entered into agreed Heads of Terms and registered agreements with retaiters in respect of its mall at Kalyan. These leases
have non-cancellable lease terms of 3 years and include a clause to enable upward revision of {he rental charge cvery 3 yeocs, if the lense is
renewed,
The future mintmun Jease incomes in respect of the non cancellable period in those ieases are as follows:
Jlst March, 2017 It Mareh, 2016
L4 T
Not later than one year 2,84,89,790 3,20.20,598
Later than onc years but not later than five years 3,96,98212 1,03,39,110 R
Later than 5 years - - S
Total fature minimun payments 6,81,88,001 4,23,59,708 " :
3 Capltal work-in-progress Cn e
" ,ff
ey .
Capital work-in-progress inchdes expenditutee incurred during thie impiementation period for bringing a project n the coirdition of its intendddy! | ,
use. Capitalisation is done iz the ratio of phascd implementation, The following expenditure is carried Tarward us capital sFork-in-progress, W
31st Maveh, 2017 st Mareh, 2016
T 2
Civil work (Inctuding Materiaf) 7.25,57,703 ©TSLBO06T v
& Consultancy 16,54,772 L 42,73,925
Other costs directly related to constiuction - 1,06,90,736 T 89:93,527
Employee costs 1,51,36.622 A ik32. 201
Leud/development cost 39,45,484 39,453,484
Other overheads 4234518 3,28.48,276
’ ' 14,63,35,035 13,94,62,480

Capltatized Borrowing Costs

The borrowing cost eapitalized duritig the year ended 31st March, 2017 was 2 88,87,076 (31st March, 2016: 2 [,1(,d45,400 ) and is part o'f' M
capital work-in-progress and property, plant and equipient. .




West Pieneer Properties (fodia) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st Morch, 2017

32 Disclosure in terms of Accounting Standards 7 - Construction Contrncts:
31st March, 2017 3ist Mareh, 2016
2 L4
Contract Revenue recognised during the year 7,29,03,427 32,10.75,287
Aggregate Cost inewrred nad recogaized protils {less recognized losses) wp 1o the reporting 1,51,38,18.346 1,44,09,12919
date
Amount of customer advances owtstanding for contracls-in-progress - 3,69.42,695
Due to costomers / clients 5,83.72.199 7.23.82,282
33 Gratuity and other Post-Employment l‘iuneﬁ: Plaus;

Toe Company has a defined benefit gratuity pian. Every employce who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure
at 15 days salary (last drawn salary} for each completed year of service. This benefit is unfunded. The folfowing tables summarise the
cemponents of net benedit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amowts recognized in the balance
sheet for the respective plans.

Siatement of Profit and Loss

Net employee bencfit expense recognised in employes cost
3ist Mavch, 2017 31st March, 2016

R B ¢
Current service cost 4,30,149 533,812
* nlerest cost 1,29,164 1,55,263
Net acruarial loss / (gais) to be recognized 2,358,408 {2,12,414)
txpense recognised Ln the Statentent of Profit & Loss (Refer note 23 8,017,721 4,785,461
Balanee Sheet
Benefit linbitity
Present Value of defined benefit obligation 17,86,723 16,43,308
Benefit linbility 17.86,728 16,43,308
Changes In present value of defined benefit obligution :
Opening Delined benefit obligation 16.43,308 19.60,287
interest Cost : E29, 504 1,55,263
Current Seyvice Cost 4.30.14% 333002
Benefitg Paid (6,74,304) 17,93,040)
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation 2,58,408 (2,12,414)
Closing defincd benefit obligation : £7,86,725 16,493,308
The nsswaptions wsed in necounting lor the gratuity plan wre sef out as below;
2016-17 Wisa6
Discount Rale 7.27% 1.86%
Future Salary Increases 5.00% 5.00%
Employee Turnover 5.00% L500%
Expected Return on Plan Asscis 0% . ' 0%
C i
AR
The Company evaluntes these assumptions annually based on its long-term plans of growtls and industry standards, The unrecognived r}el !
actuncial loss / (painy al 31st March, 2017 is €, 2,58,408/-: 31st March, 2016 (2.2,12414/-) . IS
: Y 2
Amounts for the curvent and previons four ycars are as follows: ,
W7 2016 2015 2014 .. A Z(H.Sl. .
© Gratuity . g
Dekined benefit obligation 17.86,725 16,43,308 -~ 19,60,387 13,88,794 te 1/2,34',275 ‘
N l.‘i. ¢
Bxperience adjusiment on 1,60,357 {2,20,893) 1,31,588 {37,446} 19,575
plan Ginbilities
Experience adjusiment on - . - - -
plon assets
34 Revenue from Sales Property Development ' T

Revenue from Snles Property Development continved to e recognized alter considering conmitments from the Buys and o execution.of
application forms apart from duly signed agrecments, S




West Plonzer Preperties (India) Private Limited
Netes to Binancial Statements for the year ended 3 Lst March, 2017

35 Service Tax

Cenvat Cregdit

Cenvat credit amounting to 2 54,678,414 claimed i Service tax return, peading set off, has been included in the fixed assels, Upon a
favourable judgement by the Suprete Court, the Company may be allowed to set off the Cenvat Credit and {his may result in reduction of the
value of fixed nssets and reversal of depreciation to that extent.

Service Tax Liability

1. The Retailers Association of India QR.M) and ofher setailers have tiled a writ petition with the Honourable Supceme Court of India
chatlenging the levy of Service Tax on rehital fucome by the Government, The Supreme Court by is order dated $4th October 2011 was pleased
1o grant a stay on the recovery of arrears of Service 1ax due on or before 30th September-2011 on the folfowing cortditions:

& The members of RAY/Petitioners deposit 50% of the arrenrs of service tox wmount due as on 30th Seprentiber 201 within & months in thige
equated instaliments,

b. For the balance 50%, the petiticners/each merber of RALis to furnish surety to the satisfaction of {he jurisdictionnd commissioner and also
file an individunl affidavit in the Suprenic Court vidertaking 10 pay the balunce arrcars of secvice tax., '

c. The successful party sha!l be entitled to interest on ke amount stayed by the Court at the rate a5 may be directed at the time of Fnal disposat
of the matter.

5L The Company had isswed notices to its heencees/retailers asking ihen to either submit docutentary proot” of compliance of the Suprenie
Court’s urder or to clear the owlstanding sesvice tax amount due as on 30th September 2011, Most of the retsilers huve coniplied with the order.
) All service tax dues from 18t October 2011 are baing paid by all retaiters and the Conpany Is discharging the ebligation towards the service 1as

K linbility. in respect of retaiters who have not complicd with the order, the Company has sutficient deposils from these retadlers,

Two retuilers viz, Bata-India Ltd, nag Metro Shoes Limited, of Metro Junction Mall, filed separate Appeals in the Supreme Court of India
chalienging the order dated 4t August 2011 passed by a Divisions Bench of Bombay High court in respeet of levying service 1ax on rental
income by the Goverament. Both tle cases will be heard alang, with the appezl (ited by Retailers Asseciation of India challenging the said levy
of service tax,

The Company has been made & formal party in those cases bit doss not believe thit the praceedings wilt hiave a materigd adverse Impaet on the
financials,

The dues outstanding of service tax on account of auy dispude are a5 follows:

Amount (3} Period to which the amount relates
1,58,50,807 FY 2007-08 10 Y 2011-12 {upto September 2011)
36 Contingencies autt Capital commitments

st Mareh, 2017 JlsCMaveh, 2016
Contingencies ¥ H

a. Contingent Liabilities not provided tor
Claims against company not ackuowledged as debts 20,090,000 000000
A suit for injurction was filed before the Dethi High Co irt against the Company praying imter alia for injunction restraining it from using the’ :I %
word “METRO" The Company has Filed an application under Order 7 Rule t for rejection of the suit, N o
The Company is contesting the cloin and does nof believe that the proceedings will have 1 material adverse Impact on the Company, L e

doo
b, Other clafms o '
]

i} 12 persons, claiming (o Be legal heirs (“petitioners’) of 4 tenant on Company's  Kalysn Land prior to 1950, have Niked 0 lawsuic painst

Hardcastle and Waud Mfg. Co. Lid. (HAWCO) the then awaer of the tand in o Kalyan court for injuntetion thad #o construciion activities should =~ " ‘; N

he carried on the said Land Though the person was a fenant in respect of the land pavecls at Netivli Kalyan, his tenancy rights Tiad been

surrendered and accordngly the revenue authoritios deleted his stame from the fand records on 7™ May $956. The said deletion of the tenant
had not been contested. However, in the year 2010, the petitioners have filed & case, challenping the said deletion of nane, bfore the Sub- "
divisional Officer (SDO} at Thane. The SDO kas rejected their case as barred by e taw of limitation. EA

The petitioners appeal before the appellate andvority ias also been dismissed. The petitioners thea filed a Iawsuit in Kalyan (‘.nu’i’n:l‘—aéﬁinm the
appellate order. Since HAWCO had gronted leasehold rights in respeet of Kalyan Land in tavour of the Company, it bas been made a party in

the said dawsuit, The suit is pending, There is no injunction againgt the Company in the mateer.

Company has now purchascd this land, which was initinlly leased from HAWCO. No outlow is expeted aad based on legsl ndvice received,
the Company does not expeet £ ndverse putcons? in 1lis matter.

-~

iy The Company is developing n commercial complex catled Metro Pazs ot Netivali Kalyan. A group of clients of Melro Placa nits have Gied &
consirner cases agaisist the Company before the State Conswmer Foram inter alin disputing the areas of the units 83 well o5 the % ol loading 1o
be charged on ench unit, The Company has filed its written statements i the misiter and the matiers ave now kept for filing affidavits o) -
evidence, ‘
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West Ploncer Propevties (Indla) Private Limited
Notes {o Financlal Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2017

Plaintiffs filed a suit for declaration as well as for injunction and possession of' an area of approx. 2900 sq.R, The Company has raised an
objeotion regurding jurisdiction of the cuurt 1o entertain the matter o the ground of Taw of limitation. Matter is pending for adjudication

The Company is contesting these claims and does not believe that the proceedings witl have a materin! adverse fmpact on it,

. 'The Company has received Notice of Demand from Maharashira Value Added Tax department amowiting 0 T 1L06I86 and 2

22,30,415.13 for the Financial Year 2007-08 and Financial Year 2008-09 respeetively. The company hag already paid Value Added Tax 1o the

vendoss, ind thus has gone in appeal by paying the amount of £ 4,00,804 and ¥ 2,23,04t respectively.

The Company is contesting these cluims nd does wot helieve that the procesdings will have a materinl adverse impact on it

L Accumulated Preference Dividend Arvenrs

*Other coramitments include development and construction eost towards mixed use properties to be incurred in future,

Supplementary Stntitory Information

Jist March, 2017 31st March, 2016
k4 4
Accumulated Prefesence Dividend Arrears 19,92,00.226 17,98,81,025
. Capital Commitwments
Jist Mavely, 2057 31st March, 2016
Ed T
Estimaled umount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accosint and not provided 35,25,596 87,444,597
for
Other commitments* 52,75,55,808 10,03,32.872
Total 53,10,81,401 14,90,77,469

3ist Mareh, 2047 J1st March, 2046

37.1 Expenditare in foreign curreney (Acerual Basis) E4 T

Travelling Expenses 141,816 [.59.567

Professional Fees 10,774,380 3,76,483
37.2 Valie of Imporis

Capital Goods 1,21,27.693 -

Other Material 48,181 -
37.3 Payrends to Anditors:

a) As Auditors (excluding Service Tax} 8,00,000 9.00,000

b} Tn other capacity . .

©) Out of pocket expenses 55,799 43.173
Total 8.55,799 943,173

Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises Development Act, 2006

! .
Based cu the Information available with e Company, to dues are outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as on 31" March,

2017.

Previous Year Comparatives

The Company has tegrouped, reclassified and restated previous yeas figures 1o conform o this year's classitiction.

.




West Pioneer Propertivs {India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2017

Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 09/18/2016 to 3071272046 a5 required vide notification No
G.5.R.367 ( ©) d1.30/03/2017

Other denomination
Particulars SBNs notes Amotini
Closing Cash in hand as on 8-11-2016 565,500 1,76,611 742,113
+) Permitted Receipts - 18,02,360 18,02,360
{*} Amount withdrawn from Banks 12,10,567 12,10,567
(=) Permitted Payments , . 503,921 503,931
(-} Amount deposited in Banks ' 5,64,500 129.036 21.64.536
Closing cust in hand as on 30-12.2016 - 8,56,583 8,806,583

As per our 1eport of even date

ForSRB C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Chartered Accountants West Ploneer Propertics {Indin) Private Limited
ICAI/%; Regisiration No.: 324982E/8300003 )
Jd}‘tﬁl) Aiosf 7.
g R
perdayesh Gandhi . DrShatadru Seaguptn Sanjay Soni
Paciner Director Director
Membership No.: 37924 DIN No. 00291695 DINM No. 01048644
*
Sundeep Kumar Mina! Kardile
CFO Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai

h, Place: Mumbai
Date ; 29tk May 2017

Date : 29th Moy 2017
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO MEMBERS OF
WESTFEILD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WESTFEILD ENTERTAINMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the company”) which comprise Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017,
Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with..the accounting principles .generally waccepted in ‘India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities,
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. a

CHARTERED
£\ ACCOUNTARYS

. i \
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audst.g‘\i o
ST

Auditor’s Responsibility

We have taken into account provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.



We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating appropriateness of
accounting policies used and reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We belleve that the audlt evidence we have obtalned I8 sulflclent antd apptoptiale 1o provide d
hasis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner
_so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India; '

a) Incase of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2017:

b) In case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Loss for the year ended on that date;
and

€} Incase of the Cash Flow S_tate_r_ne_nt,- o_f the cash ﬂo__ws_ for the year ended on that date.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub section {11) of Section 143 of the Act (hereinafter
referred to as the “Order’) and on basis of such checks of the books and records of the
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in Annexure A a statement on matters specified in the
Paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b} In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and lLoss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

<
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March, 2017, from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f)  With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure B.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company has a pending litigation in the Bombay High Court. 1n case, the
uitimate outcome of the pending litigation is adverse to the Company, it may
lose a sizeable part of the litigation land for an unascertainable amount- Refer
Note 22 annexed to the Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

fi. No amount was required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March, 2017.

iv.  The company has no dealing in specified bank notes during the period from gt
November 2016 to 30" December 2016.

FOR RAJENDRA K. GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
- ‘Regd. No. 108373w
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RLENDRA K. GUPTA
PARTNER
Membership No. 009939

Place: Mumbai

Date: 19" may, 2017



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal And Regulatory Requirements in
our report to members of WESTFEILD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017,

We report that:

.
(11N

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assefs;

{b} Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. According o Information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, having regard to
size of the Company and nature of its assets the periodicity of verification of fixed
assets of the Company is reasonable;

{c) According to information and explanations given to us and on basis of our
examination of records of the Company, title deeds of immovabie properties as
disclosed in Note 8 on Fixed Assets are held in name of the Company;

The Company is engaged in real estate business, and does not hold any inventory;
hence, the requirement under paragraph 3 (i) of the Companies {Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 (“Order”) is not applicable;

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,

_Himited liability partnerships or-other. parties covered in the register maintained under

-section 189 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’), hence paragraph 3 (ifi) of the Order

" is not applicable;

The Company has not granted.any loans or made any investments, or provided any

- Buarantee or security to parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act, hence

vi.

vil.
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paragraph 3 {i_v) of the Order is not applicable;. .

_Inour opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not accepted any deposits from public during the year, and hence paragraph 3 (v)
of the Order is not applicable;

The Company has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act to maintain cost records and hence paragraph 3 {vi) of the
Order is not applicable;

{a} According to information and explanations given to us and according to records
of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including income-tax, service tax, profession tax, cess and any other
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities;

(b) There were no disputed/ undisputed amounts in respect of the statutory dues
mentioned above as on 31st March, 2017 outstanding for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable;



viil. The Company has not borrowed any money from any financial institution or bank or
through debentures, hence haragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable;

iX. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public
offer {including debt instruments) and term loans, hence paragraph 3 (ix} of the Order
is not applicable;

Mmanagement.

Xi. The Company has not given any managerial Remuneration covered by the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act, hence paragraph 3 (xl) of the Order s
not applicable;

xii. The Coempany is not a nidhj company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
the Company, hence paragraph 3 (xii} of the Order is not applicable

Xiii. According to information and expianations given to us by the Management, we
report that all transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act and details have been disclosed'in the Financial Statements,

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly _conv.er_tibl_e,..debentures--.duri_ng'-the ‘year under review ‘and hence
paragraph 3 {xiv} of the Orderis not applicable; 7 B o

XV. According to information and . explanations given to us by the Management, the

applicable;

Xvi, The Company is not required to be registered under section 45IA of Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and hence paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable,

FOR RAJENDRA K. GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Regd. No. 108373w

CRARTERED RAJENDRA K. GUPTA

P_J«;?ANJ! \-m.._(r_ﬁ.\(_“ "™ kog,}Mj I~

1| rCOONTANTS

PARTNER
Membership No. 009939

Place: Mumbaj

Date : 19" may, 2017



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO AUDITOR'’S REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ our report to members of WESTFEILD ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE LIMITED,
(‘the Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2017,

Report on Internal Financial Control under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act , 2013 (‘the
Act’)

We have audited internal financial control over financial reporting of WESTFEILD
ENTERTAINMENT PRIVATE UMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with
our audit of financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Control

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
control based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAN. These res;ponsibilitie's includes design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that was operating effectively for ensuring
orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
- safeguarding of “assets, prevention “and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of acéoun_ting_ records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information,
‘as required under the Companies Act, 2013. e

Auditor’s Responsibility

- :0ur responsibility .is to .express. an opinion on SCofnpany’s internal financial control over
Note on Audit-of Intérnal"Finahéiéi}Coh‘frdi'd\)é'r Financial Reporting {"the Guidance Note’} and
~ Standards on Auditing, issued by 1CAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143{10) of

‘the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial control, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial control and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and Guidance
nate require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial control over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such control operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit evidence about adequacy of the
internal financial control system over financial reporting and its operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of the internal financial control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

i
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
a reasonable assurance regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial
statements for external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

1. Pertain to maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded ag necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and
Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

(5]

fnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

Because of inherent limitations of internal financial control over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override _bf controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud m'ay occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal "finah'cial'con'trol over financial reporting: may hecome
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. .

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial control
system over financial reporting and such internal financial control over financial reporting was
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering essential components of internal
control stated in Guidance Note on Audlt of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of india.

FOR RAJENDRA K. GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Regd. No. 108373W,

A ) \_A.\
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et "’_ﬁ'"

RAJENDRA K, GUPTA
PARTNER
Membership No. 009939

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19" may, 2017




Westfield Entertainment Private Limited
Batance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Equity and Liabilitics
Sharcholders’ Funds

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
X z

Share Capital 3 9,27.37,860 9,27.37,860
Reserves and Surplus 4 62,18,20,884 62,19,00,692
71,45,58,744 71,46,38,552
Non-current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 53.83.810 33.83.810
Other Long~Term Liabilities 6 2,260 2.260
53,86,070 33,86,070
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 7 - -
Other Current Liabilities 7 18,11,488 19,60,962
18,11,488 19,60,962
TOTAL 72,17,56,302 71,99,85,584
Assels
NOI!WGHI'I'B!!( Aﬁﬂﬁtﬁ
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 8 57,90,34,493 38,806,27.025
Capital work-in-progress 14,26,31,641 13,12,68,391
Long-term Loans and Advances 9 78,950 78,950
Non-current investments 10 22 22
L T2LA745,106 71,99,74,388
Curreat Assels o . .
Cash and Bank Balances ENRE - 11,196 11,196
TOTAL 72,17,56,302 71,99,85,584
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.}

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the finaneial stalements

As per our report of even date

For Rajendra K. Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 108373 W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gfgl}l?mwa/j r‘*ﬁ;@::jxv

P}F@;LMCJ\-“ )( L Loy C‘J/

Rajeadra Kumar Gupta (Gaurang Agrawal) {Dharmendra Agarwal)
Partryer Director Director
Membership No.: 9539 DN No.00021685 DIN No.06406889

M,Lntyp

Minal Kardile
Company Secretary

Place; Mumbai Piace: Mumbai
Date : 19th May 2017 Date : 19th May 201 7




Westlield Entertainment Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
g X

income 12 - 3,553
Total Revenue - 3,555
Expenses

Other Expenses 13 62,718 1,189,172
Depreciation 17,0690 17,137
Finance costs - -
Total 79,808 1,36,309
{Loss) for the year (79,808) (1,32,754)
Pax Adgustments of Prior Years - -
{L.ess) for the year {79,808) (1,32,754)
Earnings per equity share of nominat value Rs 1¢ 4

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (0.0 {0.02)

i

summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Rajendra K. Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 108373 W

:}-:?.m..ﬁ‘(f«;,(_.\_(:’ﬁ - )./( [Swys \__),u

Rajendra Kumar Gupta”
Partner
Membership No.: 9939

Place: Mumbai
Date @ 19th May 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ywwf!

(Gaurang Aprawal)
Director
DIN No.0002 1665

@ ol :
S G S
(Dharmendras Agarwal)

Director
DIN No.06406889

Minal Kardile
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date : 19th May 2017




Wesificld Entertainment Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For the vear ended
March 31,2014

kY X
Operating Activities
{LLoss) before tax (79.808) (1.32.754)
Adjustments to reconeile profit before fax to net cash flows
Depreciation 17,090 17,137
{Decrease)/Increase in Current Liabilities (1,49,474) 10,44,791
Net Cash Flow (used in)/from Operating Activities (2.12,192} 9,29,174
Investing Activities
Construction Cosls incurred _[17.87.808) (16.81.853)
Net eash flow used in investing activities (17,87,808) (16,81,853)
Financing Activities
Ureenred Loun received 20,00,000 7,000,000
Net cash flows from financing activities 20,00,00¢ 7.00.000
Net (decrense) In cash and cash equivalents - (52.679)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 11,196 63,875
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11,196 11,196 i

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Methed' as set out in the Accounting Standard AS-3

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Summary of significant accounting policies {(Refer Note 2.1)

As per our report of even date

For Rajendra K, Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regisfration No.: 108373W

":? ’\t‘—"{ e yk,k T {--}“kﬂ" o

Rajgndra Kumar Gupta
Pariner
Membership No.: 9939

Place: Mumbai
Date : 191h May 2017

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

(Gaurang Agrawal)
Director
DIN No.p0021665

o
HL\:)/.»_-’.’
Minal Kardile

Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date ¢ 19th May 2017

(Dharmendra Agarwal)
Director
1IN No.06406889




h)

(c)

n

e}

)

{h)

Woestfield Eatertaimnent Frivete Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for 1he year ended 318 hMarch, 2007

Corpurate Fafonmation

Westlicld Urtermainment Private Limited is favohed in dovelnpment, construction and manmgement of mixed use propesty in india i is 100%
subsidiary of West Pioneer Properties {Indiny Private Eimited

Basis of Preparation

The Financiad Statements of the Cempany are prepared m accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles in India Undian GAAP). The
Company prepares these finaneial Slatements to comply in all material respects with the secounting standards notified under seetion 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, (the Act) read together with para 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The financial statement hive been prepared on an
acerusl basis and under the historical cost convention.

Sigaificnnt Accounting Policies

Presentation and Disclosure of Finapein] Statenments

Assels and Labilities are classiliod as Current and Non Cureent ag ot the Company's normal aperating eyele wd ethar eriteria scloqt in Schedits 1 or
the Aet. Based on the pawwee of setivity carried ow by 1he Compuny and ihe pensd between the procurement ane readisation in cosh amgd cash
cquivadents, the Compaty has aseertained jts upesating oyele 45 12 months for the prrpose of Carrent-Non Current classification of assets and Lubilities.
Use of Estimatey

Prapaation of Finuneinl Statements in conformity with Indisn GAAP requires management 10 make eslimates and asswnptions that wlect the reporsed
anonnts of ussels and fabilitics and disclosure of comingent liabilines at the date of e financisd $iatements ad the resalts of aperations during 1he
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowleape of curent cvends and actions, actual sgsuits could dif¥er from
these estimales.

Tangible Fixed Assefs

Frsed assels are stated al cost less aeenmulied deprocidtion and knpaisment losses ilfany. Cost comnprises the cost of wcquisition and any siributeble
cost ol bringing ahic auset 1o jig warking condition for its intzided use. Valoe ol icssehold land is amortised over the respeclive residual lease periog,

Deprecistion on Tangible Flxed Assets

Depreciction is provided using the straight tne method n5 presinibed under schedide 1 of the Act based on isll e of an assel us specified there.n
and in case the sihedute i opinian lves do net fairly reflect such uselyl tife, an ¥be bashs of technical evalunzion mile Ly e matagement,
Depreciation an assets costing less Ui ¢ £,000

To comply with e requirement of Schedule I 1o the Act, the Compeny has changed its accounting policy for depreciation of assets gosting less than
5,000~ As per the revised palicy, ihe Company s depreciating sucl nssets over their uselul lives as assessed by the management, ‘The management
hag decided to apply the revised sceeunting policy prospectively from the seomting periods conmimencing on or afier 1st April 2ii4,

Investunents

Loug wim Invesuaews are valued at cost. Provision for any permanent dimarution in valug of such investments is made, W necessery, Current

Fvaestments ire stated at cost or market Hue whichever is lower,

Leases

Where the Company Is the lessen

Leases where 1he lessor effectively rataing substantially ail the rists and benefis of owaershi > of (e Teased ussel, are clnssified as o crming lepses
h M I

Revenae Reroeuiiiz

Revenue is recoprised 1o the et it is probable that the cconomie benefits will fhow 19 the Company and the revenue can b seliably measured.

fterest
Revenoz is recopnised on a time Propurtion basis inking in2o account the amonng autstanding and the e applicable.

Livideinds

Revemie is recognisad wivet the shareholders’ Tighi to seseive payment iy eetablished by the badance sneat date,

HARYERED
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Woestfield Entertainment Private Limited
Notes to Financial Swements for the year ended 31st Marck, 2017
Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred taxes. Current income tax is measurod at the amount expected 0 be paid 0 the wx authorfies m
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Deferred inGomo sax reflects the impact: of current year timing, dilfererices between 1axable mcome and
accounting incame for the vear and reversel of timing differences of earlier years. Delerred 1ax is measured based on the 1y rates and the tax aws
enacted or sthstantively enacted w the balance sheat date.

At cach balance sheet date e Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets, It recognizes unrecognized deferred @x agsets 1o the extent that it
has beceme reasenably cetain or virtwally certain hal sufficient e taxable income will be availabie against which such deterred tax asseis can be
realized.

Expenditure on New Profects and Substantia) Expavsion

Expenditure directly retating to construction aetivity is capitalized, Indireet expeadilure incurred during constauction panad is capitadized as part of the
indirect consisuclion cosk gn the extens snch sxpenditnm is indirectiy reloted 1o congtrugtion er I incidemal thercto. Otbs adisel eapenditg e
(including borrowing cost incurred) which is not reimed 10 the construction aclivity nor is incidental thereio is charped 1 e Statement of Profit and
Loss,

All direet capital expeaditure en expansion is capitilized . A3 tegurds inditeel expenditure on expansion, only b PO s Capitalived wiieh
fepresents thie margial increase in such expenditure involved as o resuit of capital expansion. Both diteet and indireet exspenditures are capitalized only
if'they incicasc the satue vl i issci Lieyund s uliplaul Stititdtizad o1 performance.

Earnings Per Share

Basic comings per shaze is caleutated by dividing the afier tax nel profit or loss for the period attributable tw eqaity sharcholders by thy weigiied
average muamnbor of equity shares outstanding during the repuriing period. Weighted average number of cquity shares outstunding during the peried is
adfusted for event Tike bonus issus, banus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share splil feonsolidation nf shares

Foe the purpose of enleudating diluted camings per share, the nel profit ¢ lass for the peried aitributable 10 equity shareholders amd the weighted iverage
rramber of shares outstanding during, the period sre adbusted for the effects, of all diligive polential equity shares,

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation a3 a result of past events and it is probable tat an oulfiow of resonmes will be
required to seltlg the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate con be made, Pravisiens sre niot discounted to their present value and ure
determined based on best estimates required to settle.the obligation at the balasee shect duie. These are reviewed At il bidanes sheet dare it wdusted
1o refleet the current best estimates.

Cash and (?nsﬁ_ l:j‘;'t_]ui\'ulcnls

Cash and cash cquivalents in the balarce sheet comprise cash at bank and 10 hand and shortlenn investinents with an original maiarity of three months
or less. . .

Contingent Linbflities

A contingent liability is a possible ebligation that urises from Fast cvents whose exislence will be confirmed by the ecetrrence or non-oecartence of une
or more uncertain future events beyond. the contsol of the Company. or-a prese-obligation-dhi-is-nol-recognized because it 157101 yrobable tiat an’

“outflow of resources will be reauired to settle the obligation. A contingent-Hability also arises in extremely Tare cases where thore is n labifity th

cannat be recognized because it cunnot be measured relizbly. The Company docs not recagnize a contingent linkrility but diseloses its existence in the
linancial statensents, '

Share Capital

315t Muarel 2097 3is ;\'l:ll'cix_ 2046
X %
Authorised Share Capital
50,05,200 (2016: 59,05,200} Equily Shares of 210 each 5,90,57,000 5,90,52 000
6,85200{2016; 6,85,200), Preference Shares al'¥ {00 wich 6,55,20,000 6,85, 26,000
12,75,72 000 12,15.72,000
Issued, Subscvibed and Paid-up Shire Capiitad
Fully paid up
59,05,166 (2016: 59,05,166) Lquity Shares of T 10 euch 3.90,51,660 59031600
3,34,512 (2016:3,34,512) §% Non ~ Cumulative Radeemable Preferetice Shures of 2 100 eacl 3.34.51 300 304,50,200
2,350(2016:2,350) Redemmable Preference Shares of 2 100 eeck 3.35.000 235,000
Foduf 427,37.550 9,273,800
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Westlield Enterdainment Private Limited
Metes 1o Financial Statzments for the year ended 31st Mareh, 2057

(2} Reconcitintion of shares oulstanding g beginning and af end of the reperting pesjod
Squile shares
3i5t Moeech 2037 JTst March 2016
Nos 3 Nos X
AL baginning of the year 59,05,166 5,90,5],680 39,05,166 580,351,660
Gutslanding at end of the year 39,035,166 5,90.3 1,660 59,05,166 3.90,51,660
Non-Cunulatlve Redeeinable Proference siares
8% Non-Cumalative Redeemaoble Prefercuce shares
315t Mareh 2017 31st March 2016
Nos g Nog h
Al beginning of the year 3,34512 3.34.5],200 334,512 3,34.51,200
Dutstutling at ewd of the year 334,512 3,34,58,200 3,31512 3.34,51,200
Redeemable Preference shares ‘
31st Maoreh 2017 Jist March 2016 i
Nos X Nos z |
Al beginning of the year 2,330 2,35,000 2350 2,435,000
Oulstsoding af end of the year 2,150 2,535,000 2350 2,35,600 a

(D} Terms/ rlghts areached to Equity Slaves

The Company has only ane class ol equity shures having par value of 2 10 per share. Ench helder ol equity shares is entated 10 one vate e shase, The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupess. The dividend proposed by the Bourd of Directoss is subject 10 approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Anirugl Genernd heealing,

During the year ended 31 Mareh 201 7, the gmount of per share dividend recogrized as distributions 10 equity shareholders was *Nil {31 March 2016
"N,

In the event of liguidation o the Compuny, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining ussets of the Company, alter distribagion of
all preferentinl amounts. The distribution will be in POportion i the nusiber ol equity shares held by the sharehotders.

{c) “Terms angd conditions of §% Nou-Cumnlative Redeemable Preforence Shares
(1} The shares carry & preferentiag tight to 4 pon-tumulative dividend caleulated @ 8% pua,

(i) Holders ol the shares shatl have a right 1 vote only on resalutions direcily atlecting the rights atiached 10 their respective preference shares.

(i) The shares shatl be compulserily redeemable on the oxpiry-of 20 years fram the-dute of ssuc, However, the-Compamy Dasy redeeis i prefercrice
shares eafier also at any time at the Company's.option by giving 3 notice ol a period not less thim 48 (forty eight) bours, by repayment of the amoust
paid up theseon including premicm ar such amount is the Bosrd of Dircetors ol she Compuy may decide.

(iv) In o winding up, the holders of the said shares shall be eititled o a preferential right:of return: of 1he “arounts paid-up-on ahe:shares bt ‘shall not
have any further right or clatm over the surplus assets of the Company.

() Terms and Conditious of Redecomnbie Preference Shares
(iYThe Company had issued 2,350 number of Prefarence shares of £ 100 ench carnying a premiom of 9,900 per share,
(1) The shares carny noTight 1o dividend. L T : i o

{iif) The Prefereace shares carry right to vote only in accerdance with provisions of Seetion 47 of the Companies A, 2013 of any se-eractment thereot,
(iv) Redemption of Redecmabic Preference Shares ;
wo ALdhe aptlon of the [ssuer Company:

These shares would be redeemable s any time within 20 years from he date of issue af the ogtion of 1he Issuer Company by giving o 48 - hours prior
wrilien notice {o the lokdm (s} ut e redemption price ealesdated based o Diernal Rate of Rewns [IRRY of 11% compounded ansually from the dute of
receipt of Jast cull money 61 date of redemption of the Preference Shares.




Wesifield Entertainment Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2017

b. At the option of the Preference Shareboklers:

The Preference shares would be redecmable at any time within 20 vears from the date of issue at (he option al the Preferenve Sharcholders by piving a
15 days prior written notice to the issuer Company al the redemption price consisting of the [ssue Price of he share plus i 2ot eatclated based on
IRR. at the rates stated in Column 2 of the Table {appearing below) cotnpotnded annwally from the dule of recetol of kst call money uth the date of
redemption of (he Shares,

Tuble t
Applicable.Interaat Rate of Return if Redemplion is at option of the Holder
Column Column 2 Colitmen | Columy 2

After compleflon fApglivalle IRR (A fter completion Applicalle TR
{pumber) of (per annwn) (muzsher) of yewrs  |(per amzum}
years from the from the date of
date of receips of receipt of last eald
Inst #all maney money

| 0% 11 6%

2 0% 12 1%

3 B 13 %

T S ¥ Yo

5 3% 15 8%

6 I 16 % J

7 4% 17 9%

8 5% i8 10%

9 5% 19 1%

10 6%

() Bhares held by holding eompany

Cut of equity and prefetence shares isswed by the Company, shares hgid by its helding company, and their subsidiaries! associules are as helow:

3ist March 2007 st Mareh 2016
. g A
West Ploweer Propesties (India) Private Limited, a hokbing company . ’
5,905,160 (20}65_':5,905,166) Eqmiry Shares of 2,10 each 5.90,5],660 5.90,51,660

The helding company Dins 00% shareholding with 1 $0 shiiries hield joluddy Wity M Benwarilad Jitia, Mr Simdeep Kumar, Ms. aMinal Kardio, My,

'Guumng.f\garwhl‘.Mr.A;)i!Gu'pla,Mr.'O.l’.Adui;ia'nsnomiuc_candnn beholf of the Company, = 7

o

Details of sharcholders holding ntore than 5% shures in e Comniny. ;...

Nume of sharchoider 31st Mareh 2047 31st March 2414

Nosg Y hldiag in she chass Nox Yo holtling in tie chisy

Eyuity shares of ¥ 10 each fuily paid

West Pionser-Properties (Indin) Privage Limised = 50,08 166 Uy 0000 SG0866 100.00%

8% Non-Cunnlutive Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥100 each :
Anmand Yeenn Twisters Private Limited 159,400 47.65% 2,34,900 T0.07%

West Leisure Resorts Lid : 1,00,000 29.80% 1,00,600 29.89%
Ushadevi Jatia jointly with Banwari Lal Jatia 75,010 22.42% - -

Redecmable Preferance shures of € 100 cacl
West Leisure Resorss Lid 2,350 100.00% 2,350 £00.00%

As e eenods ol e Company, Including e ropiotar ol aharcholdess! memibaes and he delasimions recelved dgim snarenoklers regarding benelicl
interest, the above shaceholding represents both legad and bepeficial ownership of the shares,

CHARTERED
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Westfiehl Entertainment Private Limired
Notes (o Financial Stnements Tor the year ended 31st hMarch, 2017

Reserves and Surplus

Seeurities Preminm Aenount

Balance as per last financial statements

Additien during the year
Closing Balance

Sarpins in Statement of Profil siagd Loss

Balance as per Inst financial statements

Loss for the year

Net Surptus in Stitenient of Profit and Loss

Tutal Reserves and Furplus

Laag-term Borrowings

Othee Loans and Advances

Unsecured Losns from refaled party {Refer Note 16)
Note - There sre oo teins for repayment of loan

(Mher Long-teroy Ligbititics

[etemien Monics

Current Liubilifes

Trade Payables

Othier Current Linhifities
Overdrawn bank balance
TDS Payable

Interest acerued but et duc an borsowings

Expenses Payable

CIARTEREL

Acc%mms 5

318t Mareh 2017

318t Mareh 2016

L L3
01,90,81,600 61,90,81.6G0
G1,90,41.600 61.90.81,608

25,19,092 29,510,846

{79.808) (1,32.730)

17,39,284 28,119,092

02,18,20,584 62,19,00,692

315§ Alarch 2617
?

3383810

- 3ist Mareh 2016

?

183810

5383410

3LATAIN

Jist Marel 2017

g
2,260

31st March 2016

Ed
2,260

2,200

2,244}

3tst Mureh 07

31t March 2006

? 2
L3467 2,734,158
62,905 39,163
1045421 507,358
SAL463 ) 1,400,283
ENNRE 19.60,062
18,11,488 19,66,962




251 o1 ind 2ag 0w sey awes sy sz Fwpping wo poplacd st wonersaidop o

—

STHLT'98°8S YBr'EE 19 GLS'T6'SE LO6'06°59'L LIS 08 L9 118078t Lo AED A SN0
SE0'LT'08'es E6FFEB6'LS S8 TET'T6'SE OSFER IY'] LIS'BI°8F LD - TIS'G7'85' L9 JRI0],
LETEL0L LOTGS 01 £66'6L 0661 U679 0079¢°11 - 00T9E°[ 1 fem, pueoduiog
TTSLT6E" | TTSLT6ST - - - TISLTECT - [yl Buppng
S0T9E91 LS POLOS DT 95 ST0°96°0¢"¢ THP'ELCs £86°07° 198 GRL'OP LS - 68L°9t"LL"5 pUE] pjotaseyy

9107 L0z 107 LBIA Si0L 1107 : LITFS
au..-«_)m umnm uo Y LN—}M «m.—m ug m¢. hnz Bi{ ®) m.d. 243 .5..“ umhun_u —._.mn:... IST un 5y knmﬁ uwnm ug mxw .Amnc_uuhuﬂv i wncmummumﬂf« mm.::% a\u.m o mﬂ
HA0RE Japy uoneRaadagg HI0] s¥0a0)y

(soadny u SIURDILy}

(TT3:0N 2232%) stassw Paxip QS| g




I

Westlield Entertainnient Private Limiied
Motes o Firancial Statements for the your ended 315t March, 2017

Loag Ferm Faoans aod Advances
31st March 2047

L4
Enseenred considered pond
Security Deposils

78,950

31st March 2016
L4

78,950

TRO50

78,950

Non Current Investments
315t Apreh 2017

Investment in Haweoplost Investinents and Trading Limited - 1 {Previous Year -
1y covity share of 2. 10 fully paid gy 22

31t March 2016

Yeur Ended
st Nearvels 2017

Cash awd Baok Batances

Yoar Ended
F1st Mureh 2616

T 7
Casl snd Cush Equivalents
Cazh on hand - -
Enlanices with Danks:
~ (o conrent gecouns 11,396 1,195
11,100 1,196

Yuar Ended
IS Mureh 20T
s

Incame

{(Hher lncome
Sundry balances written back -

Yeur Ended
st Maerh 2016
7

Yeur Landed
Jist Marel 2007

Other Experses

Year Ended
3is Muweh 2006

{ H

Lease Remt k] 3
Travelling and Canveyancs 629 11,263
Printing and Stationery - 280
Legai and Profissional Fees 20500 635,040
Audit feey 34,650 7 38,550
Fiting Fees 5,200 .
Miscellancans Expangas . e B e 3306

62,718 119,172

Esinings Per Stippe -
3ist Marel 2017

Lass alier Tax () {79,808)
Weighled Averape Number of Shares {Nos}) 39,05, 166
Basic & Diluted Famings et Shore (%)

Hegmental Reporting

e S

S1st Marel 2036
(22,754
59,058,166
4007

The Company i3 enpaged s o single sepment business of develepinert, consiruction and management of mixed use praperty i India,

Related Party Diclasures
Nrawes of Related Pazties nnig My B tionships:

Controd -
Hpshiting Campany

Ulimate Hokding Company

ey Ma'mgcménl Fersonne Mr. Dharmendra Agarwai - Director
Mr. Gaurang Agarwal - Direcior
Minal Kardite - Company Seeretwry (w.e . 08-02-16)
Uransaetions wivh 1 elaied puriies
HIst March 2007
¢
West Piaucer Properties (Indis) Privade Yimired
{ntecest Capitadized
Awmownt due to related ey
i

397346

Weut Moaser Pragaitics {Lidie) Drivate Limised {woe it 1 36 MUY 20103

Winmore Leasing and I-Inldin{;s Limited (w.e.l 15th Junusry 016

SEst Mareh 20f6
I

3,08.388
34,91.168




Waestlicld Entertainment Private Limited
Notes fo Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2017

17 Capital Commitments 2 Nil (Previous Year 2 Nif)

18 Comntitments and Contingent Liabilities:
(1) Gusrantees
The Company has not provided any guarantees.
() Leases
The Company has acquired land from MLDC at Satpur, Nashik: under 2 non cancellagie opezating lease.

Fulure rentals payable under the non cancellable operating leuse are as follows,

31st Mareh 2017 31st March 2036
¥ 2
Mot Jater than onc year 3 3
Later thar one year but not later than five vears i2 12
Later than § years 149 152
Fad 167

(¢} Redemption of Redeemable Preference Shares - Liabifity caonot be measured relfably since date ol redemption is uaceriain.
19 Amortisaton and Depreciation

An amount of T 9575442 (PY, 2 95,75,442) our of cost of teasehold tand has been amortised during the year and debited to Capital Work-in-Propress

20 Expentiture In foreign currency Nil (Previous Year Nil)

21 Micro, Small andf Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The company doesn't uve any creditors,

22 The Company hiad received a notice from MIDC Nashik, requiring the Company o return a part of its leasebold fand ol Nasiik On the basis of
independent legal ndvice, the Comypany has filed a writ petition in Bombay High Court secking cancellation of the notice issued by MIDC wnd other
reliefs,

The Howble Court has stayed the MIDC notice. The matter costinues to await disposal by the Court.

In case, the uitimate outcome of the pending litigation is adverse 10 the Company, it may lose 2 sizeable part of the litigated kand for an unascentainable
Ao,

23 Previous Yesr Comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regronped / rectassified where necessary (o conform to this year’s presentation,
Brony

4 Detulls of Specified Bank Notes (SEN} hedd and transacted during the pu:ud DO/E1/2006 00 341272016 ns vequired side nolification No
G.B.JL307 () d0.30/03/2017
Othier
| denomiaation
! ) Partleulars ) SN notes Amount
Liusmg cash in hand as on §-1 ]—20]6
(#) Permitted receipls
{+ Amount withdrawn from Bemks
(=) Permitied paymeits .
(Y Amount deposiied i Banks
Closing cash in hand us on 30-12-2016
As perour sepent of even date
For Rajendra K. Gupitn & Associntes For and an hebfdf of the Bourd of Divectors
Chartered Accountants )
Firm Registration No.: 108373W 6 9
i . “""’”W S
1? ‘&«.\c{\, - Xi—‘ Vopemn fotAh e . “ s
Rujsndra Kemar Gupta (Gawrang Apreval)  {(Dharmendfa Agarwal)
Parfner Director Director

DIN No,00021663 1IN No. 06406884

CHARTERE .
LR AT Maned

Minal fardiie
Company Seerclary

Miembership No.: 9939

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbui
Date : 1918 May 2017 Date; 194k Ma} 217




